
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 1  

Town of Mineral Springs 

Mineral Springs Town Hall  

3506 S Potter Road ~ Mineral Springs 

Town Council 

Public Hearing / Regular Meeting 

May 13, 2021 

7:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Opening  
 

The meeting will be called to order, an invocation will be delivered, and the Pledge of Allegiance will be 
recited.    

 
2. Public Hearing – Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2021-01) 
 
3. Consideration of the Proposed Text Amendment (TA-2021-01) – Action Item  

 

The town council will consider approving TA-2021-01 to bring the Mineral Springs Development 
Ordinance into compliance with G.S. 160D. 
 

4. Public Comments 
 

The town council will hear comments from members of the public on any matters of interest to them 
during this ten-minute period.  

 
5. Consent Agenda – Action Item 

 

A. April 8, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B. March 2021 Tax Collector’s Report 
C. March 2021 Finance Report 
 

6. Presentation by Bjorn Hansen and Allison Drake on the Critical Intersection and 
Consideration of the Preferred Alternative – Action Item 

 

The council will be presented with the results of the Critical Intersection Study for Highway 75 and Potter 
Road and the council will consider the preferred alternative.    

 
7. Consideration of a Resolutions Opposing S349/H401 and H496 – Action Item 
 

The council will consider approving a resolution opposing Senate Bill 349 / House Bill 401 increasing 
housing opportunities with no oversight from counties or municipalities and a resolution opposing House 
Bill 496 on property owners’ rights/tree ordinances. 
 

8. Benchmark Planning Information for Scope of Services Quote – Action Item 

 

The council will discuss information requested from Benchmark Planning for their Scope of Services 
quote. 
 
 

9. Consideration of Having the Nonprofits Provide Letters of Request vs In-Person 
Presentations– Action Item  
 
 

The council will consider accepting letters of request from the nonprofits this year instead of requiring 
them to do in-person presentations.  

  
10. Consideration of the 2021-2022 Budget and Calling for a Public Hearing – Action Item 

 

Mayor Becker will present the council with the 2021-2022 proposed budget and the council will consider 
calling for a Public Hearing on June 10, 2021 for the 2021-2022 budget.   
 



www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 2  

 

11. Staff Updates   

 The staff will update the council on any developments that my affect the town.  
  
12. Other Business 

 
13. Adjournment 



 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: May 3, 2021 
Re: Agenda Items 2 & 3 – Public Hearing – Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2021-01) 
    Consideration of the Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2021-01) 
 
Chapter 160D: A New Land Use Law for North Carolina by Adam Lovelady, David W. Owens, 
and Ben Hitchings – UNC School of Government 

The new Chapter 160D of the North Carolina General Statutes consolidates city-and county-enabling 
statutes for development regulations (now in Chapters 153A and 160A into a single, unified chapter.  
Chapter 160D places these statutes into a more logical, coherent organization.  While the new law 
does not make any major policy changes or shifts in the scope of authority granted to local 
governments, it does provide many clarifying amendments and consensus reforms that will need to be 
incorporated into local development regulations. 

Chapter 160D is effective now, but local governments have until July 1, 2021 for the development, 
consideration, and adoption of necessary amendments to conform local ordinances to this new law.  
All city and county zoning, subdivision, and other development regulations, including unified-
development ordinances, will need to be updated by that date to conform to the new law.  Cities and 
counties that have zoning ordinance must have an up-to-date comprehensive plan or land use plan by 
July 1, 2022. 

Additional Information (from UNC School of Government) 

The principal impact of 160D is to: 

1. Consolidate current city and county enabling statutes now in Article 18, Chapter 153A and 
Article 19, Chapter 160A into a single, unified new Chapter 160D of the General Statutes. 

2. Place these statutes into a more logical, coherent organization, facilitating ease of finding 
relevant provisions and clarifying how the statutes relate to one another. 

3. Provide uniform authority, definitions and procedures for cities and counties, while retaining 
broad substantive policy discretion for ordinances adopted by individual jurisdictions. 

While not making major policy shifts in existing legislation, the legislation modernizes the language of 
the statute to remove obsolete terminology and clarify existing provisions without making substantive 
changes.  In addition, a number of consensus reforms that have the broad support of the local 
government and development community are incorporated. 

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
 



The 160D proposal was developed by the N.C. Bar Association.  The legislation was introduced as H. 
548 in 2015 and as S. 419 in 2017.  The bill was introduced in the 2019 session of the General 
Assembly as S. 422 and H. 448.  On May 6, 2019 the Senate passed the bill as introduced as Part II 
of S. 355.  The House of Representatives passed the bill with only a few technical tweaks on June 26.  
The Governor signed the bill on July 11.  It is S.L. 2019-111.  It initially was to become effective 
January 1, 2021 in order to allow time in 2020 to incorporate amendments made to affected statutes 
by other legislation enacted in 2019.  That incorporation was made by S.L. 2020-25.  Therefore 
Chapter 160D was made effective upon the adoption of that legislation, June 19, 2020.  However, 
local governments have until July 1, 2021 to adopt conforming amendments to their local development 
regulations, with Chapter 160D becoming effective for each jurisdiction as those amendments are 
adopted (or no later than July 1, 2021).  

The proposed text amendments required by the new Chapter 160D (Local Planning and Development 
Regulation) were presented to the Mineral Springs Planning Board in March of 2021 and were 
unanimously recommended for approval. 

Following this memo, you will find a document titled “G.S. Chapter 160D Checklist of Changes” and 
one titled “Recommended Text Amendments to the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance – 
05/13/21 – TA2021-01”.     

The document titled “G.S. Chapter 160D Checklist of Changes” is the checklist provided by UNC 
School of Government that details the changes that are necessary for our ordinance to conform with 
Chapter 160D.  The first page describes what the symbols mean throughout the document.  The first 
column in the chart shows what action staff has taken on each category.  The second column are the 
symbols provided by the School of Government denoting what actions are necessary.  Council should 
pay particular attention to page 17 of this document, because it denotes notable legislative changes 
that do not require local action, but local governments must be aware of.   

The document titled “Recommended Text Amendments to the Mineral Springs Development 
Ordinance – 05/13/21 – TA2021-01” describes each text amendment to the ordinance with council 
approval/adoption.  As noted on page 19 – the proposed text amendment to Article 3 – Section 
3.3.3(D) is not a text amendment related to the new Chapter 160D changes, but that of a correction to 
the ordinance that was inadvertently overlooked during the process of converting the zoning and 
subdivision ordinances into the unified development ordinance.   As highlighted on page 1 – there are 
two text amendments that were omitted from the planning board review/recommendation chart; 
however, they were shown in the digital version of the ordinance that the planning board received for 
review, which highlighted all the changes.    

     

      



 

Page 1 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

□ Denotes legislative changes for which local government must take action (statutory 
citations are in parentheses) (Many changes may already be reflected in the local 
ordinance.  If so, no additional change is necessary for the ordinance.) 

o Denotes permissive legislative changes for which local governments may take 
action. 

 Denotes notable legislative changes that do not require local action but of which 
local governments must be aware.  

 

 
 : Denotes that the item is addressed in the Mineral Springs Development 

Ordinance and is incorporated into the standard practice for the Town of 
Mineral Springs 

DNA: Denotes that item does not apply to the Mineral Springs Development 
Ordinance 

   



 

Page 2 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

I. Terminology and Citations [Chapter 1, Section III 

 □ Must update any references to provisions in G.S. Chapter 160A 
to indicate relevant provisions in Chapter 160D.  

 □ Must align ordinance terminology with Chapter 160D 
terminology for conditional zoning and special use permits; 
must delete use of the terms conditional use permit, special 
exception, conditional use district zoning, and special use 
district zoning. (See G.S. 160D-102. 

 □ Must ensure that ordinance definitions for the following terms 
are not inconsistent with definitions provided in state law and 
regulation: building, dwelling, dwelling unit, bedroom, and 
sleeping unit. (G.S. 160D-706; S.L. 2019-111, §1.17.) 

  o May align ordinance terminology with Chapter 160D 
terminology, including for the following terms: administrative 
decision, administrative hearing, determination, developer, 
development, development approval, development 
regulation, dwelling, evidentiary hearing, legislative decision, 
legislative hearing, planning and development regulation 
jurisdiction, and quasi-judicial decision. (G.S. 160D-102.) 

II.  Geographic Jurisdiction [Chapter 2, Section I] 
DNA □ For extension of extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ), a municipality 

must provide mailed notice thirty days prior to ETJ hearing; 
municipality may hold one hearing (with single mailed notice) 
regarding ETJ and initial zoning amendment. (G.S. 160D-
202(d).) 

DNA o Municipality may hold hearings in anticipation of change in 
jurisdiction. (G.S. 160D-204.) 

To be 
handled on 
a case-by-
case basis 

o For a parcel in two jurisdictions, the owner and the jurisdictions 
may agree for development regulations from one jurisdiction to 
apply to the entire parcel. (G.S. 160D-203.) 

DNA o In ETJ, the county may elect to exercise development 
regulations that the municipality is not exercising.  (G.S. 160D-
202(b).) 

DNA o For counties, the county may apply zoning and subdivision 
regulations to all or part of the county’s planning and 
development regulation jurisdiction. Cities with zoning must 
apply zoning jurisdiction-wide. 
(G.S. 160D-201; S.L. 2020-25.) 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

III. Boards [Chapter 2, Section II] 
A. In General 
 

Added 
language to 
2.2 and 2.6 to 
comply with 

160D-109. 

□ Must adopt broadened conflict-of-interest standards for 
governing and advisory boards. (G.S. 160D-109.) 

 □ Must keep minutes of proceedings of each board. (G.S. 160D-
308.) 

 □ Must have each board member take an oath of office before 
starting his or her duties. (G.S. 160D-309.) 

DNA □ Must update ETJ population estimate, at least with each 
decennial census (also calculation for 
proportional representation is simplified and process for 
appointment is clarified). (G.S. 160D-307.) 

DNA □ Must provide proportional representation for ETJ on 
preservation commission if any districts or landmarks are 
designated in the ETJ. (G.S. 160D-307.) 

 
Need to add 

to website 

 May have detailed rules of procedure for each board; may be 
adopted by governing board; if not, then may be adopted by 
individual board; if adopted, must maintain board rules of 
procedure (by clerk or other officer as set by ordinance) and 
must post board rules of procedure to website, if the jurisdiction 
has a website. (G.S. 160D-308.) 

 
Town Council 

appoints 

 May establish reasonable procedures to solicit, review, and 
make appointments; governing board typically makes 
appointments but may delegate that appointment-making 
authority. (G.S. 160D-310.) 

 
 

 May establish additional advisory boards related to 
development regulations. (G.S. 160D-306.) 

B.  Planning Board   
 o May assign to planning board the coordination of citizen 

engagement for planning. (G.S. 160D-301.) 

 
This was 

removed 
upon 

ordinance 
adoption 

o May assign planning board to serve as preliminary forum for 
review and comment on quasi-judicial decisions, provided that 
no part of the preliminary forum or recommendation may be 
used as a basis for the deciding board. (G.S. 160D-301.) 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

C. Board of Adjustment 
 o May assign board of adjustment to hear and decide matters 

under any development regulation, not just zoning. (G.S. 160D-
302.) 

DNA o May assign duties of housing appeals board to board of 
adjustment. (G.S. 160D-305.) 

IV. Land Use Administration [Chapter 2, Section III] 
A. In General 
 

 Added 
language to 

2.2 

□ Must incorporate new staff conflict-of-interest standards into 
ordinance or policy. (G.S. 160D-109.) 

 
Does not 
affect the 

UDO 

□ Must maintain in paper or digital format current and prior 
zoning maps for public inspection. (G.S. 160D-105.) 

 
Does not 
affect the 

UDO 

□ Must maintain in paper or digital format any state or federal 
agency maps incorporated by reference into the zoning map. 
(G.S. 160D-105.) 

 
Does not 
affect the 

UDO 

o May enact ordinances, procedures, and fee schedules relating 
to administration and enforcement of development 
regulations. (G.S. 160D-402(b).) 

 
Does not 
affect the 

UDO 

o May charge reasonable fees for support, administration, and 
implementation of development regulation; must use any such 
fees for that purpose, not for other purposes. (G.S. 160D-402(d).) 

B. Enforcement 
 

Referenced 
in Section 
2.7.2.2 (B) 

 

□ Must issue notices of violation (NOVs) in conformance with 
statutory procedures (must deliver to permittee and landowner 
if different; may deliver to occupant or person undertaking the 
activity; delivery by hand, email, or first-class mail; may be 
posted onsite; administrator to certify NOV for the 
file.) (G.S. 160D-404(a).) 

 
See changes 
to 2.7.2.1 (B) 

□ If inspecting, must enter the premises during reasonable hours 
and upon presenting credentials; must have consent of 
premises owner or an administrative search warrant to inspect 
areas not open to the public. (G.S. 160D-403(e).) 
 



 

Page 5 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

 
Language 

added to 3.1 
(C) 

□ For revocation of development approval, must follow the same 
process as was used for the approval. (G.S. 160D-403(f).) 

 
DNA 

o May perform inspections for other development approvals to 
ensure compliance with state law, local law, and the terms of 
the approval; must perform (or contract for) inspections for 
building permits. (G.S. 160D-1113; -403(e).) 

 
 

o May perform inspections for general code compliance and 
enforcement (inspections unrelated to a development 
approval). (G.S. 160D-402(b).) 

 
 

o May require a certificate of compliance or occupancy to 
confirm that permitted work complies with applicable laws and 
terms of the permit; still must require certificate of occupancy 
for work requiring a building permit. (G.S. 160D-403(g).) 

 
Language 
added to 
2.7.3 (D) 

o May issue stop-work orders for illegal or dangerous work or 
activity, whether related to a permit or not.  (G.S. 160D-404(b).) 

 
 

o May continue to use general enforcement methods, including 
civil penalties, fines, court ordered actions, and criminal 
prosecution. (G.S. 160D-404(c).) 

 
 

 Be aware that a local government must bring a court action in 
advance of the applicable five- and seven-year statutes of 
limitation. (G.S. 1-51 and -49; established prior to Chapter 
160D.) 

 
 

 Be aware that a local government must comply with existing 
rules for uses that were previously nonconforming situations. If a 
use loses its nonconforming status, by amortization or change 
of use or otherwise, the local government must bring an 
enforcement action within ten years of the loss of 
nonconforming status. (160D-1405(c1); established prior to 
Chapter 160D.) 

V. Substance of Zoning Ordinance [Chapter 3, Section I] 

 
 

□ Must maintain current and prior zoning maps for public 
inspection (local government clerk or other office may be the 
responsible office); may adopt and maintain in paper or digital 
format. (G.S. 160D- 
105.) 

 
 

□ Must eliminate conditional use district zoning; existing 
conditional use district zoning converts to conditional district on 
January 1, 2021 upon adoption of updated local ordinances or 
July 1, 2021. (G.S. 160D-703; S.L. 2020-25; S.L. 2019-111, § 2.9(b).) 



 

Page 6 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

 
 

□ Must not set a minimum square footage for structures subject to 
the One- and Two-Family Residential Building Code. (G.S. 160D-
703; S.L. 2019-174.) 

 
 

o May incorporate maps officially adopted by state or federal 
agencies (such as flood-insurance rate maps (FIRMs)) into the 
zoning map; may incorporate the most recent officially 
adopted version of such maps so that there is no need for 
ordinance amendment for subsequent map updates; must 
maintain current effective map for public inspection; may 
maintain in paper or digital format. (G.S. 160D-105.) 

 
 

o May require certain dedications and performance guarantees 
for zoning approvals to the same extent as for subdivision 
approvals. (G.S. 160D-702.) 

DNA o May use form-based codes. (G.S. 160D-703(a)(3).) 

 
 
 

o May allow administrative minor modification of conditional 
zoning, special use permits, and other development approvals; 
if allowed, must define “minor modification” by ordinance, 
must not include modification of use or density, and major 
modifications must follow standard approval process. (G.S. 
160D-403(d), -703(b), -705(c).) 

 
 

o May apply zoning standards jurisdiction-wide, not just on a 
zoning district by zoning district basis. (G.S. 160D-703(d).) 

DNA o May regulate development over navigable waters, including 
floating homes. (G.S. 160D-702(a).) 

VI. Substance of Other Development Ordinances 
[Chapter 3, Section II] 

 
 

□ Must conform subdivision performance guarantee 
requirements with statutory standards. (G.S. 160D-804.1; S.L. 
2020-25; S.L. 2019-79 (S.B. 313), to be incorporated into G.S. 
Chapter 160D.) 

 
 

□ Must conform subdivision procedures for expedited review of 
certain minor subdivisions. (G.S. 160D-802, established prior to 
G.S. Chapter 160D.) 

 
 

□ Must not require a developer, as a condition to subdivision 
approval, to bury a power line existing above ground and 
outside of property to be subdivided. (G.S. 160D-804; S.L. 2019-
174.) 

DNA □ Must exempt farm use on bona fide farm in ETJ from city zoning 
to the same extent it would be exempt from county zoning; 
Chapter 160D clarifies that other municipal development 
regulations may still apply. (G.S. 160D-903(c).) 



 

Page 7 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

 
Date based 
on HUD wind 

ratings 

□ Must not exclude manufactured homes based on the age of 
the home. (G.S. 160D-910.) 

DNA □ Must follow standardized process for housing code 
enforcement to determine owner’s abandonment of intent to 
repair and need for demolition. (G.S. 160D-1203(6).) 

 
Does not 
affect the 

UDO 

o May adopt moratoria for development regulations (subject to 
limitation on residential uses); moratoria do not affect rights 
established by permit choice rule. (G.S. 160D-107.) 

 
Does not 
affect the 

UDO 

o Municipalities may petition court to appoint a receiver for 
vacant structures. (160D-1130.) 

A. Historic Preservation 
DNA □ Must follow standard quasi-judicial procedures for preservation 

certificates of appropriateness. (G.S. 160D-947(c).) 
DNA □ Must frame preservation district provisions as “standards” rather 

than “guidelines.” (G.S. 160D-947(c).) 
DNA o May choose for appeals of preservation commission decisions 

to go to board of adjustment. Default rule is that preservation 
appeals go directly to superior court rather than to board of 
adjustment. (G.S. 160D-947(e).) 

B. Development Agreements 

 
Referenced 
in Section 

1.8.4 

□ Must process a development agreement as a legislative 
decision. (G.S. 160D-1005.) 

 
 

□ Must have a local government as a party to a development 
agreement (a water and sewer authority may enter an 
agreement as a party, but not independently). (G.S. 160D-
1001(b).) 

DNA o May consider a development agreement concurrently with a 
rezoning, subdivision, or site plan; may consider a development 
agreement in conjunction with a conditional zoning that 
incorporates the development agreement. (G.S. 160D-1001(d).) 

DNA o May address fewer topics in development agreement content 
(list of mandated topics is shortened).  (G.S. 160D-1006.) 

DNA o May mutually agree with a developer for the developer to 
provide public improvements beyond what could have been 



 

Page 8 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

required, provided such conditions are included in the 
development agreement. (G.S. 160D-1006(d).) 

DNA o May include penalties for breach of a development 
agreement in the agreement or in the ordinance 
setting the procedures for development agreements; either 
party may bring legal action seeking an injunction to enforce a 
development agreement. (G.S. 160D-1008.) 

VII. Comprehensive Plan [Chapter 4, Section I] 
Plan needs 

to be 
updated  

to be 
reasonably 
maintained. 

 

□ Must adopt a comprehensive plan or land-use plan by July 1, 
2022, to maintain zoning (no need to readopt a reasonably 
recent plan). (G.S. 160D-501(a).) 

 
 

□ Must adopt a plan or a plan update following the procedures 
used for a legislative decision. (G.S. 160D-501(c).) 

Plan needs 
to be 

updated  
to be 

reasonably 
maintained. 

□ Must reasonably maintain a plan. (G.S. 160D-501(a).) 

 
 

o May coordinate a comprehensive plan with other required 
plans, such as Coastal Area Management Act (CAMA) plans. 
(G.S. 160D-501(a).) 

 
 

o May coordinate with other local governments, state agencies, 
or regional agencies on planning processes. (G.S. 160D-503(a).) 

VIII. Legislative Decisions [Chapter 4, Section II] 
A. Notice 

 
 

□ Must follow applicable procedures for legislative decisions 
under any development regulation authorized under Chapter 
160D, not just zoning; must adopt any development regulation 
by ordinance, not by resolution. (G.S. 160D-601.) 

 
 

□ For zoning map amendments, must provide notice not only to 
immediate neighbors but also to properties separated from the 
subject property by street, railroad, or other transportation 
corridor. (G.S. 160D-602.) 

 
 

□ For zoning map amendments, must provide posted notice 
during the time period running from twenty-five days prior to 
the hearing until ten days prior to the hearing. (G.S. 160D-
602(c).) 



 

Page 9 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

DNA o For extension of ETJ, may use single mailed notice for ETJ and 
zoning-map amendment pursuant to statutory procedures. 
(G.S. 160D-202.) 

DNA o For zoning map amendments, may require applicant to notify 
neighbors and hold a community meeting and may require 
report on the neighborhood communication as part of the 
application materials. (G.S. 160D-602(e).) 

B. Planning Board Comment 
 

 
□ Must refer zoning amendments to the planning board for 

review and comment; must not have governing board handle 
planning board duty to review and comment on zoning 
amendments. (G.S. 160D-604(c), (e).) 

 
 

□ Must have planning board consider any plan adopted 
according to G.S. 160D-501 when making a comment on plan 
consistency. (G.S. 160D-604(d).) 

 
 

 May refer development regulation amendments (other than 
zoning) to the planning board for review and comment. (G.S. 
160D-604(c).) 

C. Plan Consistency 

 
 

□ When adopting an amendment to the zoning ordinance, must 
adopt a brief statement describing whether the action is 
consistent or inconsistent with approved plans. (G.S. 160D-
605(a).) (This eliminates the 2017 requirement that statements 
take one of three particular forms.) 

DNA o May adopt plan consistency statement when acting upon the 
zoning amendment or as a separate motion. (G.S. 160D-
605(a).) 

 
 

o May meet the requirement for plan consistency even without 
formal adoption of a written statement if the minutes of the 
governing board meeting reflect that the board was fully 
aware of and considered the plan. (G.S. 160D-605(a).) 

 
 

o May concurrently consider a comprehensive plan amendment 
and a zoning amendment; must not require a separate 
application or fee for plan amendment. (G.S. 160D-605(a).) 

 
 

□ Must note on the applicable future land use map when a 
zoning map amendment is approved that is not consistent with 
the map; the future land use map is deemed amended when 
an inconsistent rezoning is approved. (G.S. 160D-605(a).) (This 
clarifies that a rezoning inconsistent with a plan does not 
amend the text of the plan, but it does amend the future land 
use map.) 



 

Page 10 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

DNA  For a future land use map that is deemed amended, if it is a 
CAMA plan, then such amendment is not effective until it goes 
through the CAMA plan-amendment process. (G.S. 160D-501.) 

 
 

□ Must adopt a statement of reasonableness for zoning map 
amendments; for such statements, may consider factors noted 
in the statutes; may adopt a statement of reasonableness for 
zoning text amendments. (G.S. 160D-605(b).) 

 
 

o May consider and approve a statement of reasonableness and 
a plan consistency statement as a single, combined statement. 
(G.S. 160D-605(c).) 

D. Voting 

 
Does not 

need to be in 
UDO 

□ Must permit adoption of a legislative decision for development 
regulation on first reading by simple majority; no need for two-
thirds majority on first reading, as was required for cities under 
prior law. (G.S. 160A-75; S.L. 2019-111, § 2.5(n).) 

E. Certain Legislative Decisions 

 
Added 

language to 
3.9.1 Step 2  

□ Must prohibit third-party down-zonings; may process down-
zonings initiated by the local government or landowner (G.S. 
160D-601; S.L. 2019-111, Pt. I.) 

 
 

□ Must obtain applicant’s/landowner’s written consent to 
conditions related to a conditional zoning approval to ensure 
enforceability. (G.S. 160D-703(b); S.L. 2019-111, Pt. I.) 

 
 

o May use purely legislative conditional zoning and/or quasi-
judicial special use permitting; must not use combined 
legislative and quasi-judicial process, such as conditional use 
district zoning. (G.S. 160D-102.) 

 
Added 

language to 
3.9.2 (D) 

o With applicant’s written consent, may agree to conditional 
zoning conditions that go beyond the basic zoning authority to 
address additional fees, design requirements, and other 
development considerations. (G.S. 160D-703(b); S.L. 2019-111, 
Pt. I.) 

 
 

o May allow administrative minor modification of conditional 
zoning, special use permits, and other development approvals; 
if allowed, must define “minor modification: by ordinance, must 
not include modification of use or density, and major 
modifications must follow standard approval process. (G.S. 
160D-403(d), -703(b), -705(c).) 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 11 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

IX. Quasi-Judicial Decisions [Chapter 4, Section III] 
A. Procedures 

 
 

□ Must follow statutory procedures for all quasi-judicial 
development decisions, including variances, special use 
permits, certificates of appropriateness, and appeals of 
administrative determinations. (G.S. 160D-102(28).) 

 
 

□ Must hold an evidentiary hearing to gather competent, 
material, and substantial evidence to establish the facts of the 
case; the evidentiary hearing must have testimony under oath; 
must establish written findings of fact and conclusions of law. 
(G.S. 160D-406.) 

Add to BOA 
Rules of 

Procedure 
□ Board chair must rule at the evidentiary hearing on objections 

to inclusion or exclusion of administrative material; such ruling 
may be appealed to the full board. (G.S. 160D-406(d).) 

 
 

□ Must allow parties with standing to participate fully in the 
evidentiary hearing, including presenting evidence, cross-
examining witnesses, objecting to evidence, and making legal 
arguments; may allow non-parties to present competent, 
material, and substantial evidence that is not repetitive. (G.S. 
160D-406(d).) 

 
 

o May continue an evidentiary hearing without additional notice 
if the time, date, and place of the continued hearing is 
announced at a duly noticed hearing that has been 
convened; if quorum is not present at a meeting, the 
evidentiary hearing is automatically continued to the next 
regular meeting of the board with no notice. (G.S. 160D-
406(b).) 

 
 

o May distribute meeting packet to board members in advance 
of the evidentiary hearing; if this is done, then must distribute 
the same materials to the applicant and landowner at the 
same time; must present such administrative materials at the 
hearing and make them part of the hearing record. (G.S. 160D-
406(c).) 

DNA 
Opted out 

with 
adoption of 
ordinance 

o May have the planning board serve as a preliminary forum for 
review in quasi-judicial decisions; if this is 
done, the planning board must not conduct a formal 
evidentiary hearing, but must conduct an informal preliminary 
discussion of the application; the forum and recommendation 
must not be used as the basis for the decision by the board—
the decision must still be based on evidence presented at the 
evidentiary hearing. (G.S. 160D-301.) 

DNA 
Opted out 

with 
o May require recordation of special use permits with the register 

of deeds. (G.S. 160D-705(c).) 



 

Page 12 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

adoption of 
ordinance   

  Be aware that the definition of close family relationship as used 
for conflicts of interest includes spouse, parent, child, brother, 
sister, grandparent, or grandchild (including step, half, and in-
law relationships). (G.S. 160D-109(f).) 

  Be aware that even if there is no objection before the board, 
opinion testimony from a lay witness shall not be considered 
competent evidence for technical matters such as property 
value and traffic impacts. (S.L. 2019-111, § 1.9.) 

B. Certain Quasi-Judicial Decisions 

 
 

□ Must not impose conditions on special use permits that the 
local government does not otherwise have statutory authority 
to impose. (G.S. 160D-705(c); S.L. 2019-111, Pt. I.) 

 
 

□ Must obtain applicant’s/landowner’s written consent to 
conditions related to a special use permit to ensure 
enforceability. (G.S. 160D-1402(k); G.S. 160D-1403.2; S.L. 2019-
111, Pt. I.) 

 
 

□ Must set a thirty-day period to file an appeal of any 
administrative determination under a development regulation; 
must presume that if notice of determination is sent by mail, it is 
received on the third business day after it is sent. (G.S. 160D-
405(c).) 

 
 

o May adjust variance standards to provide for reasonable 
accommodation under the federal Fair Housing Act. (G.S. 
160D-705(c).) 

 
 

o May use purely legislative conditional zoning and/or quasi-
judicial special use permitting; must not use combined 
legislative and quasi-judicial process, such as conditional use 
district zoning. (G.S. 160D-102.) 

 
 

o May allow administrative minor modification of conditional 
zoning, special use permits, and other development approvals; 
if allowed, must define “minor modification” by ordinance, 
must not include modification of use or density, and major 
modifications must follow standard approval process. (G.S. 
160D-403(d), -703(b), -705(c).) 

X. Administrative Decisions [Chapter 4, Section IV] 
A. Development Approvals 

 
Need to 
protect 
electronic 
forms. 

□ Must provide development approvals in writing; may provide in 
print or electronic form; if electronic form is used, then it must 
be protected from further editing. (G.S. 160D-403(a).) 



 

Page 13 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

 
Added 

language to 
3.1 (B) 

□ Must provide that applications for development approvals 
must be made by a person with a property interest in the 
property or a contract to purchase the property. (G.S. 160D-
403(a).) 

 
Added 

language to 
3.1 (C) 

□ Must provide that development approvals run with the land. 
(G.S. 160D-104.) 

 
Added 

language to 
3.1 (C) 

□ For revocation of development approval, must follow the same 
process as was used for the approval. 
(G.S. 160D-403(f).) 

DNA o May require community notice or informational meetings as 
part of the decision-making process for administrative 
development approvals (quasi-judicial and legislative decisions 
already had notice and hearing requirements). (G.S. 160D-
403(h).) 

 
Added 

language to 
1.8 

o May set expiration of development approvals if work is not 
substantially commenced; default rule is twelve months, unless 
altered by state or local rule. (G.S. 160D-403(c).) Building 
permits expire after six months, as under prior law (no change 
to building permits). (G.S. 160D-1111.) 

 
Added 

language to 
1.8 

o May extend expiration for development approvals for which 
construction is commenced and then is discontinued; default 
rule is that such approvals are valid for 24 months after 
discontinuation. (G.S. 160D-108(d.) Building permits for which 
work has been discontinued expire after twelve months, as 
under prior law (no change to building permits). (G.S. 160D-
1111.) May set expiration of development approvals if work is 
discontinued; default rule is twelve months, unless altered by 
state or local rule. (G.S. 160D-403(c).) Be aware that legislation 
will clarify the provisions on duration of development approvals. 
(G.S. 160D-403(c); S.L. 2019-111, § 1.3.) 

 
 

o May authorize administrative staff to approve minor 
modifications of development approvals and conditional-
zoning approvals; if this is done, then must define “minor 
modifications” by ordinance and must not include modification 
of permitted use or density of development; major 
modifications must go through full applicable approval 
process. (G.S. 160D-403(d); -703(b); -705(c).) 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 14 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

B. Determinations 

 
 

□ Must provide written notice of determination by personal 
delivery, electronic mail, or first-class mail to the property owner 
and party seeking determination, if different from the owner. 
(G.S. 160D-403(b).) 

 o May designate an official to make determinations for a 
particular development regulation. (G.S. 160D-403(b).) 

DNA o May require owner to post notice of determination on the site 
for ten days; if such is not required, then owner has option to 
post on the site to establish constructive notice. (G.S. 160D-
403(b).) 

C. Appeals of Administrative Decisions 

 
 

□ Must allow administrative decisions of any development 
regulations (not just zoning) to be appealed to the board of 
adjustment, unless provided otherwise by statute or ordinance. 
(Appeals relating to erosion and sedimentation control, 
stormwater control, or building code and housing code 
violations are not made to the board of adjustment unless 
specified by local ordinance.) (G.S. 160D-405.) 

 
 

□ Must set a thirty-day period to file an appeal of any 
administrative determination under a development regulation; 
must presume that if notice of determination is sent by mail, it is 
received on the third business day after it is sent. (G.S. 160D-
405(c).) 

 
 

□ Must require the official who made the decision (or his or her 
successor if the official is no longer employed) to appear as a 
witness in the appeal. (G.S. 160D-406.) 

 
 

□ Must pause enforcement actions, including fines, during the 
appeal. (G.S. 160D-405.) 

  May assign the duty of hearing appeals to another board 
(other than the board of adjustment); if this is done, such board 
must follow quasi-judicial procedures. (G.S. 160D-405.) 

  May designate that appeals be filed with the local government 
clerk or another official. (G.S. 160D-405.) 

XI. Vested Rights and Permit Choice [Chapter 5, Section I] 
A. Vested Rights 

 
Amended 
Section 1.8 

□ Must recognize that building permits are valid for six months, as 
under prior law. (G.S. 160D-1111 G.S. 160D-108(d)(1).) 

 □ Must recognize the default rule that development 
approvals/permits are valid for twelve months, unless altered 



 

Page 15 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

Amended 
Section 1.8 

by statute or extended by local rule adjusted by statute or 
local rule. (G.S. 160D-108(d)(2).) 

 
Amended 
Section 1.8 
and 3.11 

□ Must identify site-specific vesting plans (formerly site-specific 
development plans) with vesting for two to five years, as under 
prior law, except for specified exceptions. (G.S. 160D-108.1 G.S. 
160D-108(d)(3); -108(f).) 

 
Amended 
Section 1.8 

□ Must recognize multi-phase developments—long-term projects 
of at least 25 acres—with vesting up to seven years, except for 
specified exceptions (160D-108(c)(d)(4); -108(f).) (The previously 
authorized phased-development plan is obsolete and should 
be deleted from ordinance.) 

DNA  May provide for administrative determination of vested rights 
and for appeal to the board of adjustment. (G.S. 160D-
108(h)(c), -405.) 

  Be aware that a person claiming vested rights may bring an 
original civil action in court, skipping administrative 
determination and board of adjustment consideration. (G.S. 
160D-108(h); 160D-405(c).) 

  Be aware that vested rights run with the land, except for state-
permitted outdoor advertising permits that run with the owner 
of the permit. (G.S. 160D-108(i)(g); S.L. 2019-111, Pt. I.) 

B. Permit Choice 

 
Amended 
Section 1.8 

□ Must not make an applicant wait for final action on the 
proposed change before proceeding if the applicant elected 
determination under prior rules. (G.S. 143-755; G.S. 160D-
108(b).) 

  Be aware that if a local development regulation changes after 
an application is submitted, the applicant may choose the 
version of the rule that applies; but may require the applicant 
to comply with new rules if the applicant delays the 
application for six months. (G.S. 143-755; G.S. 160D-108(b); S.L. 
2019-111, Pt. 
I.) 

  Be aware that an application for one development permit 
triggers permit choice for permits under any development 
regulation; such permit choice is valid for eighteen months 
after approval of the initial application. (G.S. 143-755; G.S. 
160D-108(b); S.L. 2019-111, Pt. I.) 

XII. Judicial Review [Chapter 5., Section II] 
A. Declaratory Judgments 

 

 
 Be aware that an individual may bring a declaratory judgment 

action to challenge legislative zoning decisions, vested rights 
claims, and challenges to land use authority related to 



 

Page 16 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

administrative decisions, subject to specified procedures. (G.S. 
160D-1401; G.S. 160D-1403.1) 

  Be aware that other civil actions may be authorized—G.S. 
Chapter 160D does not limit availability of other actions. (G.S. 
160D-1404.) 

B. Appeals of Quasi-Judicial Decisions 
DNA □ Must update ordinance to address appeals of certificates of 

appropriateness for historic landmarks and historic districts; 
default rule is that such appeals go straight to court; local 
government may opt for such appeals to go to the board of 
adjustment, as under prior statutes. (G.S. 160D-947.) 

DNA □ Must provide that appeals of certificates of appropriateness 
must be filed within thirty days after the decision is effective or 
written notice is provided, the same as for appeals of other 
quasi-judicial decisions. (G.S. 160D-947; -1405.) 

  Be aware that on appeal a party may request a stay of the 
approval or enforcement action. (G.S. 160D-1402(e).) 

  Be aware that a local government may seek a stay in favor of 
itself (to prevent development under an approval). (G.S. 160D-
1402(e).) 

  Be aware that if, in the absence of a stay, an applicant 
proceeds with development, the person does so at his or her 
own risk. (G.S. 160D-1402(l).) 

  Be aware that on appeal, the superior court now must allow for 
supplementing the record on questions of standing, conflicts of 
interest, constitutional violations, or actions in excess of 
statutory authority. 
(G.S. 160D-1402; S.L. 2019-111, § 1.9.) 

  Be aware that even if there is no objection before the board, 
opinion testimony from a lay witness shall not be considered 
competent evidence for technical matters such as property 
value and traffic impacts. (G.S. 160D-1402; S.L. 2019-111, § 1.9.) 

  Be aware of specific judicial instructions for decisions of 
appeals of quasi-judicial decisions. (G.S. 160D-1402(k); S.L. 2019-
111, § 1.9.) 

C. Subdivision Decisions 
DNA o May establish a rule that administrative subdivision decisions 

are appealed to the board of adjustment. (G.S. 160D-1405.) 

  Be aware that appeals of administrative subdivision decisions 
may be appealed directly to superior court. (G.S. 160D-1403.) 

  Be aware that quasi-judicial subdivision decisions are appealed 
to superior court in the nature of certiorari. (G.S. 160D-1402.) 



 

Page 17 of 17 
 

G.S. CHAPTER 160D CHECKLIST OF CHANGES 

   

D. Attorneys’ Fees 

  Be aware that a court shall award attorneys’ fees if the court 
finds that a city or county violated a statute or case law setting 
forth unambiguous limits on its authority. (G.S. 6-21.7; S.L. 2019-
111, Pt. I.) 

  Be aware that a court shall award attorneys’ fees if the court 
finds that a local government took action inconsistent with, or 
in violation of, the permit choice and vested rights statutes. 
(G.S. 6-21.7; S.L. 2019-111, Pt. I.) 

  Be aware that a court may award attorneys’ fees in other 
matters of local government litigation. (G.S. 6-21.7; S.L. 2019-
111, Pt. I.) 

E. Additional Judicial Rules 
   Be aware that a court may join a civil action challenging an 

ordinance with an appeal in the nature of certiorari. (G.S. 
160D-1402(m).) 

  Be aware that a local government must not assert the defense 
of estoppel to enforce conditions to which an applicant did 
not consent in writing. (G.S. 160D-1403.2; S.L. 2020-25; S.L. 2019-
111, Pt. I.) 

  Be aware that an action is not rendered moot if the party loses 
the relevant property interest as a result of the local 
government action being appealed, subject to applicable 
case law limits. (G.S. 160D-1402(j1); S.L 2019-111, Pt. I.) 



 

Page 1 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
1 1.3  A 1-2 (formerly 160A, Article 19) Delete 
1 1.3 B 1-2 160D-7-3 160D-703 
1 1.3 B 1-2 (formerly 160A-382) Delete 
1 1.7 A 1-5 160D-7-1 160D-701 
1 1.7 A 1-5 (formerly 160A-383) Delete 
1 1.8 1.8.1 1-5 New language Too long to include in 

chart:  Development 
approvals and vested 
rights (NCGS 160D-
108.1)  See pages 18 
and 19 for details 

1 1.8 1.8.2 
renumbered 
Title 

1-7 Establishment of 
Development Vested 
Rights 

Establishment of 
Extended Development 
Vested Rights 

1 1.8 1.8.2 1-7 site-specific plan 
 

site-specific vesting 
plan 

1 1.8  1.8.2 1-7 160D-1-8 160D-108 
1 1.8 1.8.2 1-7 (formerly 160A-385.1) Delete 
1 1.8 1.8.2 1-7 160D-1-8 160D-108 
1 1.8 1.8.2 1-7 (formerly 160A-385.1 or 

153A-344.1 
Delete 

1 1.8 1.8.3 1-7 (formerly 160A-400.2.32) Delete   
1 1.8 1.8.3 1-7 160D-1-8 160D-108 
1 1.8 1.8.4 1-7 (formerly 160A-400.2.32) Delete 
2 2.2 2.2 (G) 

(new) 
2-1 New language G.  In accordance with 

NCGS 160D-109 (c), the 
Administrator shall not 
make a final decision 
on an administrative 
decision if the outcome 
of that decision would 
have a direct, 
substantial, and readily 
identifiable financial 
impact on the 
administrator or if the 
applicant or other 
person subject to that 
decision is a person with 
whom the administrator 
has close family, 
business, or 
associational 
relationship.  

2 2.4 2.4.1 A 2-3 160-361 160D-301 



 

Page 2 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
2 2.4 2.4.2 F 2-4 may not participate in or 

vote on any matter on 
which they have a fixed 
opinion prior to the 
hearing, have 
undisclosed ex parte 
(without equal 
representation) 
communications or close 
family, business or 
associational ties with an 
affected person, or have 
a financial interest in the 
outcome of the case.  
 

In accordance with 
NCGS 160D-109 (b), 
members of the 
Planning Board shall not 
vote on an advisory or 
legislative decision 
where the outcome of 
the matter being 
considered is 
reasonably likely to 
have a direct, 
substantial and readily 
identifiable financial 
impact on the member.  
Members of the 
Planning Board shall not 
vote on any zoning 
amendment if the 
landowner of the 
property subject to a 
rezoning petition or the 
applicant for a text 
amendment is a person 
with who the member 
has a close familial, 
business or 
associational 
relationship. 

2 2.4 2.4.3 B 2-4 160D-3-1 160D-301 
2 2.4 2.4.3 B 2-4 (formerly 160A-361) Delete 
2 2.4 2.4.3 B (1) 2-4 To make studies of the 

Town and surrounding 
areas; 

To prepare, review, 
maintain, monitor, and 
periodically update 
and recommend to the 
Town Council a 
comprehensive plan, 
and such other plans as 
deemed appropriate, 
and conduct ongoing 
related research, data 
collection, mapping, 
and analysis; 



 

Page 3 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
2 2.4 2.4.3 B (2) 2-4 To determine objectives 

to be sought in the 
development of the 
Town and propose and 
recommend plans for 
achieving these 
objectives; 

To facilitate and 
coordinate citizen 
engagement and 
participation in the 
planning process; 

2 2.4 2.4.3 B (3) 2-4 To develop and 
recommend to the Town 
Council policies, 
ordinances, 
administrative… 

To develop and 
recommend to the 
Town Council policies, 
development 
regulations, 
administrative… 

2 2.4 2.4.3 B (4) 2-4 To designate 
redevelopment areas. 

To advise the Town 
Council concerning the 
implementation of 
plans, including, but not 
limited to, review and 
comment on all zoning 
text and map 
amendments as 
required by NCGS 
160D-604; 

2 2.4 2.4.3 B (5) 2-4 New language  To exercise any 
functions in the 
administration and 
enforcement of various 
means for carrying out 
plans that the Town 
Council may direct; 

2 2-4 2.4.3 B (6) 2-4 New language To perform any other 
related duties that the 
Town Council may 
direct. 

2 2.5 2.5.1 A 2-5 160D-3-2 160D-302 
2 2.5 2.5.1 A 2-5 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
2 2.5 2.5.2 E 2-7 conditional uses special uses 



 

Page 4 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
2 2.5 2.5.2 G 2-7 may not participate in or 

vote on any matter on 
which they have a fixed 
opinion prior to the 
hearing, have 
undisclosed ex parte 
(without equal 
representation) 
communications or close 
family, business or 
associational ties with an 
affected person, or have 
a financial interest in the 
outcome of the case. 

Members of the Board 
of Adjustment shall not 
participate in or vote on 
any quasi-judicial 
matter in a manner that 
would violate affected 
persons’ constitutional 
rights to an impartial 
decision maker. 
Impermissible violations 
of due process include, 
but are not limited to, a 
member having a fixed 
opinion prior to hearing 
the matter that is not 
susceptible to change, 
undisclosed ex parte 
communications, a 
close familial, business, 
or other associational 
relationship with an 
affected person, or a 
financial interest in the 
outcome of the matter.  

2 2.5 2.5.3 2-8 160A-388 160D-302 
2 2.5 2.5.3 A 2-8 160D-4-6 160D-406 
2 2.5 2.5.3 A 2-8 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
2 2.5 2.5.3 F 2-8 160D-14-2 (c) 160D-1402 (c) 
2 2.5 2.5.3 F 2-8 (formerly 160A-393(d)) Delete 
2 2.6 2.6 A (4) 2-9 160D-4-6 160D-406 
2 2.6 2.6 A (4) 2-9 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
2 2.6 2.6 A (5) 2-9 (formerly 160A-400.2-32) Delete 



 

Page 5 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
2 2.6 2.6 2-9 New language C. In accordance with 

NCGS 160D-109 (a), a 
Town Council 
member shall not 
vote on any 
legislative decision 
regarding a 
development 
regulation adopted 
where the outcome 
of the matter being 
considered is 
reasonably likely to 
have a direct, 
substantial, and 
readily identifiable 
financial impact on 
the member.  A Town 
Council member shall 
not vote on any 
zoning amendment if 
the landowner of the 
property subject to a 
rezoning petition or 
the applicant for a 
text amendment is a 
person with whom 
the member has a 
close familial, 
business, or other 
associational 
relationship. 

 
2 2.7 2.7.1 2-9 NCGS 160D-4-4 (formerly 

160A-175, 160A-365, 
160A-389) and NCGS 14-
4: 

NCGS 160A-175, 160D-
106, 160D-404, and 
NCGS 14-4: 

2 2.7 2.7.1 
Title 

2-9 Development or Use 
Inconsistent with Permit 

Development or Use 
Inconsistent with 
Development Approval 



 

Page 6 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
2 2.7 2.7.2 2-11 The Administrator or 

designee shall have the 
right upon presentation 
of proper credentials and 
inspection warrant, if 
necessary, to enter on 
any premises within the 
jurisdiction at any 
reasonable hour for the 
purposes of inspection, 
determination of plan 
compliance, or other 
enforcement action.  
 

The Administrator or 
designee shall be 
authorized upon 
presentation of proper 
credentials and the 
consent of the property 
owner or an inspection 
warrant, if necessary, to 
enter any premises (not 
open to the public) 
within the jurisdiction at 
any reasonable hour for 
the purposes of 
inspection, 
determination of plan 
compliance, or other 
enforcement action.  

2 2.7 2.7.2.2 (B) 2-11 The Administrator or 
designee shall… 

Subject to NCGS 160D-
404 (a), the 
Administrator or 
designee shall… 

2 2.7 2.7.2.3 2-12 160D-4-5 160D-405 
2 2.7 2.7.2.3 2-12 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
2 2.7 2.7.3 (A) 2-13 NCGS 160D-4-4 (formerly 

160A-175, 160A-365, 
160A-389) and NCGS 14-4 

Subject to NCGS 160A-
175, 160D-404, and 
NCGS 14-4, 

2 2.7 2.7.3 (D) 2-13 New language Such action may 
include the issuance of 
a stop-work order, 
subject to NCGS 160D-
404 (b). 

2 2.7 2.7.3 (F) 2-13 New language For development or use 
of a property 
inconsistent with the 
development approval, 
the Town may revoke 
the development 
approval in the same 
manner in which the 
approval was given, 
subject to NCGS 160D-
403 (f). 
 



 

Page 7 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.1 3.1 (B) & (C) 3-1 New Language (B) Pursuant to NCGS 

160D-403(a), all 
applications for 
development approval 
shall be made by a 
person with a property 
interest in the property 
or a contract to 
purchase the property, 
except for government-
initiated map or text 
amendments. 
 
(C) In accordance with 
NCGS 160D-104, all 
development approvals 
run with the land unless 
otherwise provided for 
in this ordinance.  In 
order for a 
development approval 
to be revoked, the 
same process that used 
for the approval must 
be followed, in 
accordance with NCGS 
160D-403 (f). 

3 3.1 Table 3.1 – 
Note 

3-2 160D-4-6 160D-406 

3 3.1 Table 3.1 – 
Note 

3-2 (formerly 16A-388) Delete 

3 3.2 3.2.1 (H) 3-4 160D-4-5 160D-405 
3 3.2 3.2.1.(H) 3-4 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
3 3.3 3.3.1 (B) 3-19 160D-8-2 160D-802 
3 3.3 3.3.1.(B) 3-19 (formerly 160A-376) Delete 
3 3.3 3.3.2 3-20 (formerly 160A-376) Delete 
3 3.3 3.3.2 3-20 160D-8-2 160D-802 
3 3.3 3.3.2 

Under 
Certificate 
of 
Subdivision
… 

3-20 (formerly 160A-376) Delete 



 

Page 8 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.3 3.3.2 

Under 
Certificate 
of 
Subdivision
… 

3-20 160D-8-2 160D-802 

3 3.3 3.3.2 3-21 (formerly 160A-376) Delete 
3 3.3 3.3.2 3-21 160D-8-2 160D-802 
3 3.3 3.3.3 (D) 3-21 New language Prior to Final Plat 

approval, the applicant 
shall provide 
documentation of 
satisfactory approval by 
the Union County 
Health Department for 
onsite septic suitability 
for each new lot 
created. 

3 3.3 3.3.6 
Step 9 (C) 

3-33 (formerly 160A-372 (f)) Delete 

3 3.3 3.3.6 
Step 9 (C) 

3-33 160D-8-4(g) 160D-804(g) 

3 3.3 3.3.7 (A) 3-42 (formerly 160A-373) Delete 
3 3.3 3.3.7 (A) 3-42 160D-8-3 160D-803 
3 3.3 3.3.9 (D) 3-44 changes 

change 
modifications 
modification 

3 3.3 3.3.10 3-45 (formerly 160A-374) Delete 
3 3.3 3.3.10 3-45 160D-8-6 160D-806 
3 3.4 3.4.1 3-46 (formerly 160A-374) Delete 
3 3.4 3.4.1 3-46 160D-7-5(c)) 160D-705(c) 
3 3.4 3.4.1 

Flow Chart-
Step 4 

3-46 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.4 3.4.1 
Flow Chart-
Step 5 

3-46 Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing & Decision 

Board of Adjustment 
Hearing & Decision 

3 3.4 3.4.1  
Step 4 Title 

3-47 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.4 3.4.1 
Step 4 -first 
line 

3-47 …provide notice of the 
public hearing… 

…provide notice of the 
evidentiary hearing… 

3 3.4 3.4.1 
Step 4 

3-47 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 

3 3.4 3.4.1 
Step 4 

3-47 160D-4-6 160D-406 



 

Page 9 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.4 3.4.1 

Step 5 
Title 

3-48 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.4 3.4.1 
Step 5 (A) 

3-48 …conduct a quasi-
judicial public hearing… 

…conduct a quasi-
judicial evidentiary 
hearing… 

3 3.4 3.4.1 
Step 5 (F) 

3-49 …at the discretion of the 
Town Council… 

…at the discretion of 
the Board… 

3 3.4 3.4.1 
Step 5 (H) 

3-49 (formerly 160A-393) Delete 

3 3.4 3.4.1 
Step 5 (H) 

3-49 160D-4-6 160D-1402 

3 3.4 3.4.2 (C) 
3 places 

3-50 minor changes minor modifications 

3 3.5 3.5.1 3-52 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
3 3.5 3.5.1 3-52 160D-7-5 160D-705 
3 3.5 3.5.1 

Flow Chart-
Step 4 

3-52 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.5 3.5.1 
Flow Chart-
Step 5 

3-52 Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing & Decision 

Board of Adjustment 
Hearing & Decision 

3 3.5 3.5.1  
Step 4 Title 

3-53 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.5 3.5.1 
Step 4 -first 
line 

3-53 …provide notice of the 
public hearing… 

…provide notice of the 
evidentiary hearing… 

3 3.5 3.5.1 
Step 4 

3-53 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 

3 3.5 3-5-1 
Step 4 

3-53 160D-4-6 160D-406 

3 3.5 3.5.1 
Step 5 (A) 

3-54 …conduct a quasi-
judicial public hearing… 

…conduct a quasi-
judicial evidentiary 
hearing… 

3 3.5 3.5.1 
Step 5 (A) 
(2) 

3-54 New language …except as necessary 
to make reasonable 
accommodation under 
the Federal Fair Housing 
Act for disabled 
residents. 

3 3.5 3.5.1 
Step 5 (G) 

3-55 (formerly 160A-393) Delete 

3 3.5 3.5.1 
Step 5 (G) 

3-55 160D-4-6 160D-1402 

3 3.6 3.6.1(A) 3-57 (formerly 160A-393(d) Delete 



 

Page 10 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.6 3.6.1(A) 3-57 160D-14-2(c) 160D-1402(c) 
3 3.6 3.6.2 3-59 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
3 3.6 3.6.2 3-59 160D-4-5 160D-405 
3 3.6 3.6.2 

Flow Chart-
Step 4 

3-59 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Flow Chart-
Step 5 

3-59 Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing & Decision 

Board of Adjustment 
Hearing & Decision 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 3 Title 

3-60 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.6 3.6.2 first line 3-60 … provide notice of the 
public hearing… 

…provide notice of the 
evidentiary hearing… 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 3 

3-60 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 3 

3-60 160D-4-6 160D-406 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 4 Title 

3-60 Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing and 
Decision 

Board of Adjustment 
Evidentiary Hearing 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 4 (B) 

3-60 …quasi-judicial public 
hearing… 

…quasi-judicial 
evidentiary hearing… 

3  3.6 3.6.2 
Step 4 (D) 
First line 

3-61 (formerly 160A-400.9(e)) Delete 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 4 (D) 
First line 

3-61 160D-9-47(e) 160D-947(e) 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 4 (D) 
Last line 

3-61 (formerly 160A-393(k)) Delete 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 4 (D) 
Last line 

3-61 160D-14-2(k) 160D-1402(k) 

3 3.6 3.6.2 
Step 4 (H) 

3-62 (formerly 160A-393) Delete 

3 3.6 3.6.2 (H) 3-62 160D-4-6 160D-1402 
3 3.7 3.7.1 3-63 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
3 3.7 3.7.1 3-63 160D-4-6 160D-406 
3 3.7 3.7.1 

Flow Chart-
Step 4 

3-63 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.7 3.7.1 
Flow Chart-
Step 5 

3-63 Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing & Decision 

Board of Adjustment 
Hearing & Decision 



 

Page 11 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.7 3.7.1 

Step 3 Title 
3-64 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 

Hearing 
3 3.7 3.7.1 

Step 3 first 
line 

3-64 … provide notice of the 
public hearing… 

…provide notice of the 
evidentiary hearing… 

3 3.7 3.7.1 
Step 3 

3-64 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 

3 3.7 3.7.1 
Step 3 

3-64 160D-4-6 160D-406 

3 3.7 3.7.1 
Step 4 (A) 

3-65 …quasi-judicial public 
hearing… 

…quasi-judicial 
evidentiary hearing… 

3 3.7 3.7.1 
Step 4 (E) 

3-66 (formerly 160A-393) Delete 

3 3.7 3.7.1 
Step 4 (E) 

3-66 160D-4-6 160D-1402 

3 3.8 3.8.1 3-67 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
3 3.8 3.8.1 3-67 160D-4-6 160D-406 
3 3.8 3.8.1 

Flow Chart-
Step 4 

3-67 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.8 3.8.1 
Flow Chart-
Step 5 

3-67 Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing & Decision 

Board of Adjustment 
Hearing & Decision 

3 3.8 3.8.1 
Step 4 Title 

3-68 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

3 3.8 3.8.1 
Step 4 first 
line 

3-68 … provide notice of the 
public hearing… 

…provide notice of the 
evidentiary hearing… 

3 3.8 3.8.1 
Step 4 

3-68 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 

3 3.8 3.8.1 
Step 4 

3-68 160D-4-6 160D-406 

3 3.8 3.8.1 
Step 5 (A) 

3-69 …quasi-judicial public 
hearing… 

…quasi-judicial 
evidentiary hearing… 

3 3.8 3.8.1 
Step 5 (H) 

3-70 (formerly 160A-393) Delete 

3 3.8 3.8.1 
Step 5 (H) 

3-70 160D-4-6 160D-1402 

3 3.9 3.9.1 3-72 (formerly 160A-384) Delete 
3 3.9 3.9.1 

Flow Chart-
Step 5 

3-72 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Legislative 
Public Hearing 



 

Page 12 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.9 3.9.1 

Flow Chart-
Step  

3-72 Town Council Public 
Hearing & Decision 

Town Council 
Legislative Public 
Hearing Decision 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 2 (A) 

3-73 Applications to amend 
the Zoning Map may be 
initiated by Town Council, 
the Planning Board, Town 
Staff, or anyone who 
owns a property or 
resides in the area of 
jurisdiction of this 
Ordinance or the agent 
of such person, except 
that Conditional Zoning 
district requests may only 
be initiated by the 
property owner or agent 
of legal or equitable 
interest in the subject 
property. 
 

Applications to amend 
the Zoning Map may be 
initiated by Town 
Council, the Planning 
Board, or Town Staff. 
Except for a 
government-initiated 
zoning map 
amendment, when an 
application is filed by a 
property or resides in 
the area of jurisdiction 
of this Ordinance or the 
agent of such person 
and not filed by the 
landowner or 
authorized agent, then 
actual notice shall be 
provided to the 
landowner subject to 
NCGS 160D-602 (d).  No 
reduction in zoning 
district intensity shall be 
initiated by any person 
other than the 
landowner or 
authorized agent, 
except for government-
initiated amendments. 
Conditional Zoning 
district requests may 
only be initiated by the 
property owner or 
agent of legal or 
equitable interest in the 
subject property. 



 

Page 13 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.9 3.9.1  

Step 4 (B) 
3-74 The Planning Board may 

make one of the 
following 
recommendations… 

Subject to NCGS 160D-
604(d), the Planning 
Board shall advise the 
Town Council by 
making one of the 
following 
recommendations… 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 5 
Title 

3-76 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Legislative 
Public Hearing 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 5 

3-76 (formerly 160A-384) Delete 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 5 

3-76 160D-6-2 160D-602 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 5 
Second line 

3-76 …prior to the public 
hearing… 

…prior to the hearing… 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 5 (C) 
Second line 

3-76 …prior to the public 
hearing… 

…prior to the hearing… 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 5 (D) 
First line 

3-76 …prior to the public 
hearing… 

…prior to the hearing… 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 5 (E) 
Fifth Line 

3-77 …location of the public 
hearing… 

…location of the 
hearing… 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 5 (E) 
Second to 
last line 

3-77 …prior to the public 
hearing… 

…prior to the hearing… 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 6 
Title 

3-77 Town Council Public 
Hearing and Decision 

Town Council 
Legislative Public 
Hearing and Decision 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 6 (A) 
First line 

3-77 …after a public 
hearing… 

…after a hearing… 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 6 (A) 
Second Line 

3-77 By a simple majority 
vote… 

Subject to NCGS 160D-
605, by a simple 
majority vote… 

3 3.9 3.9.1 
Step 7 (B) 
Fourth Line 

3-78 …after having held a 
public hearing… 

…after having held a 
hearing… 



 

Page 14 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.9 3.9.2 (D) 3-79 New Language In accordance with 

NCGS 160D-703 (b), 
specific conditions may 
be proposed by the 
petitioner or the Town, 
but only those 
conditions mutually 
approved and agreed 
upon in writing may be 
incorporated into the 
zoning regulations. 

3 3.9 3.9.2 (E)  
2 places 

3-79 minor deviations minor modifications 

3 3.9 3.9.2 (E)  3-79 New language ; and (4) would not 
modify the permitted 
uses, land use 
intensities, or residential 
densities. 

3 3.10 3.10.1 3-80 (formerly 160A-384) Delete 
3 3.10 3.10.1 

Flow Chart-
Step 5 

3-80 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Legislative 
Public Hearing 

3 3.10 3.10.1 
Flow Chart-
Step 6 

3-80 Town Council Public 
Hearing & Decision 

Town Council 
Legislative Public 
Hearing & Decision 

3 3.10 3.10.1  
Step 4 (A) 

3-80 The Planning Board may 
make one of the 
following 
recommendations… 

Subject to NCGS 160D-
604(d), the Planning 
Board shall advise the 
Town Council by 
making one of the 
following 
recommendations… 

3 3.10 3.10.1 
Step 5 
Title 

3-82 Notice of Public Hearing Notice of Legislative 
Public Hearing 

3 3.10 3.10.1 
Step 5 (A) 
Last line 

3-82 …established for the 
public hearing… 

…established for the 
hearing… 

3 3.10 3.10.1 
Step 5 (B) 
Last line 

3-83 …established for the 
public hearing… 

…established for the 
hearing… 

3 3.10 3.10.1 
Step 6 
Title 

3-83 Town Board Public 
Hearing and Decision 

Town Board Legislative 
Public Hearing  



 

Page 15 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.10 3.10.1 

Step 6 (A) 
First line 

3-83 Following a public 
hearing 

Following a hearing 

3 3.10 3.10.1 
Step 6 (A) 
Second line 

3-83 …public hearing… …hearing… 

3 3.11 3.11.1 3-85 Formerly 160A-385.1 Delete 
3 3.11 3.11.1 3-85 160D-1-8 160D-108.1 
3 3.11 3.11 

Throughout 
3-85 to 
3-88  

 Vested rights 
 Site-specific 

development plan 
 

 Extended vested 
rights 

 Site-specific vesting 
plan 

4 4.4.2 4.4.2.3 4-18 (formerly 160A-383.5) Delete 
4 4.4.2 4.4.2.3 4-18 160D-9-14 160D-915 
4 4.4.2 4.4.2.5 4-20 (formerly 122C, 131D and 

168) 
Delete 

4 4.4.2 4.4.2.5 4-20 160D-9-6 160D-907 
4 4.4.7 4.4.7.6 4-50 (formerly 160A-400.54-57) Delete 
4 4.4.7 4.4.7.6 4-50 160D-9-35 160D-935 
5 5.3.3 5.3.3.1 5-22 (formerly 160A, Art. 19, 

Part 3, 5 and 8) 
Delete 

5 5.3.3 5.3.3.1 5-22 160D-9-23 160D-923 
8 8.7 8.7 (B) 

Second line 
8-11 …conduct a public 

hearing… 
…conduct an 
evidentiary hearing… 

8 8.7 8.7 (B) 8-11 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
8 8.7 8.7 (B) 

First line 
8-11 160D-4-6 160D-406 

9 9.4 APPEAL 9-7 (formerly 160A-388) Delete 
9 9.4 APPEAL 9-7 160D-4-5 160D-405 
9 9.4 BEDROOM  New language  A fully enclosed interior 

room with a closet, 
door, and window for 
egress. 

9 9.4 BOARD, 
PLANNING 

9-11 (formerly 160A-361) Delete 

9 9.4 BOARD, 
PLANNING 

9-11 160D-3-1 160D-301 

9 9.4 BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENT 

9-11 (formerly 160A-388 Delete 

9 9.4 BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENT 

9-11 160D-3-2 160D-302 



 

Page 16 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
9 9.4 DWELLING  New language Any building, structure, 

manufactured home, 
or mobile home, or part 
thereof, used and 
occupied for human 
habitation or intended 
to be so used, and 
includes any outhouses 
and appurtenances 
belonging thereto or 
usually enjoyed 
therewith. 

9  9.4 DWELLING 
UNIT 

9-22 A room or combination 
of rooms containing a 
bathroom and kitchen 
facilities, and designed 
for or used as a 
permanent residence or 
secondary residences by 
one (1) family. 

A single unit providing 
complete, independent 
living facilities for one 
(1) or more persons, 
including permanent 
provisions for living, 
sleeping, eating, 
cooking and sanitation. 

9 9.4 FAMILY 
CARE HOME 

9-25 (formerly 168-22) Delete 

9 9.4 FAMILY 
CARE HOME 

9-25 160D-9-6 160D-907 

9 9.4 SLEEPING 
UNIT 

 New language A room or space in 
which people sleep, 
which can also include 
permanent provisions 
for living, eating, and 
either sanitation or 
kitchen facilities but not 
both.  Such rooms and 
spaces that are part of 
a dwelling unit are not 
sleeping units. 

9 9.4 TEMPORARY 
HEALTH 
CARE 
STRUCTURE 

9-72 (formerly 160A-383.5) Delete 

9 9.4 TEMPORARY 
HEALTH 
CARE 
STRUCTURE 

9-72 160D-9-14 160D-915 



 

Page 17 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

Article Section # Subsection # Page # Current Language Amendment 
3 3.3.3(D) Minor 

Subdivision 
Defined 

3-20 New language Prior to Final Plat 
approval, the applicant 
shall provide 
documentation of 
satisfactory approval by 
the Union County Health 
Department for onsite 
septic suitability for each 
new lot created.  
 
Note:  This one text 
amendment is not 
required by G.S. 160D – it 
is a text amendment 
outside of that scope.  It is 
to specify septic suitability 
is required for a minor 
subdivision, which was 
omitted during the July 
2019 conversion to the 
Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance.  

. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 18 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

1.8  VESTED RIGHTS AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS 
 
1.8.1  ESTABLISHMENT OF DEVELOPMENT VESTED RIGHTS 

Pursuant to NCGS 160D-1-8 (formerly 160A-385.1) and notwithstanding any other provision 
of this Ordinance or amendment thereto, a landowner may apply for a site specific 
development plan approval which shall entitle said landowner to develop property in 
accordance with said site specific development. The procedure for establishing a vested 
right is set forth in Section 3.11. 
 
1.8 Development Approvals and Vested Rights Development 
Agreements 
 
1.8.1 DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL DURATION 
 
A.  Pursuant to NCGS 160D-1109, building permits expire six months after issuance 

unless work under the permit has commenced and work has not been 
discontinued for a period of more than 12 months after the work has commenced. 

 
B. Unless otherwise specified, local development permits expire one (1) year after 

issuance unless work authorized by the permit has substantially commenced. A 
local land development regulation may provide for a longer permit expiration 
period. For the purposes of this section, a permit is issued either in the ordinary 
course of business of the applicable governmental agency or by the applicable 
governmental agency as a court directive. Except where a longer vesting period 
is provided by statute or land development regulation, the statutory vesting 
granted by this section, once established, expires for an uncompleted 
development project if development work is intentionally and voluntarily 
discontinued for a period of not less than 24 consecutive months, and the statutory 
vesting period granted by this section for a nonconforming use of property expires 
if the use is intentionally and voluntarily discontinued for a period of not less than 
24 consecutive months. The 24-month discontinuance period is automatically 
tolled during the pendency of any board of adjustment proceeding or civil action 
in a State or federal trial or appellate court regarding the validity of a 
development permit, the use of the property, or the existence of the statutory 
vesting period granted by this section. The 24-month discontinuance period is also 
tolled during the pendency of any litigation involving the development project or 
property that is the subject of the vesting. 

 
C.  Where multiple local development permits are required to complete a 

development project, the development permit applicant may choose the version 
of each of the local land development regulations applicable to the project upon 
submittal of the application for the initial development permit. This provision is 



 

Page 19 of 19 
 

RECOMMENDED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE – 05/13/21 
TA2021‐01

applicable only for those subsequent development permit applications filed within 
18 months of the date following the approval of an initial permit. For purposes of 
the vesting protections of this subsection, an erosion and sedimentation control 
permit or a sign permit is not an initial development permit. 

 
D.  A multi-phased development is vested for the entire development with the land 

development regulations then in place at the time a site plan approval is granted 
for the initial phase of the multi-phased development. A right which has been 
vested as provided for in this subsection remains vested for a period of seven (7) 
years from the time a site plan approval is granted for the initial phase of the multi-
phased development. 

 
E.  Following issuance of a development permit, a local government may make 

subsequent inspections and reviews to ensure compliance with the applicable 
land development regulations in effect at the time of the original application. 

 
F. If a land development regulation is amended between the time a development 

permit application was submitted and a development permit decision is made or 
if a land development regulation is amended after a development permit 
decision has been challenged and found to be wrongfully denied or illegal, then 
NCGS 143-755 applies. 



 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
STATEMENT OF REASONABLENESS  

AND CONSISTENCY  
 

Mineral Springs Development Ordinance  

Articles 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, and 9 

TA-2021-01 

 
In reference to the proposed text amendments to Articles 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, and 9 of the Mineral 
Springs Development Ordinance. 

The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed text amendments to be 
“reasonable” as they bring the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance into compliance with 
General Statute 160D, and one specifically clears up the procedures for minor subdivisions.     
 
The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed text amendments to be 
“consistent” with the Mineral Springs Land Use Plan adopted October 12, 2006 and the 
Vision Plan contained therein, which specifically calls for periodic review to make sure that 
the Ordinance is as up to date as possible. 
 
ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council this the 13th day of May 2021. 

 

              
 Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

 

Attest: 

 

       
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 91 

 
 
 
 
 

Draft Minutes of the  
Mineral Springs Town Council  

Regular Meeting / Public Hearing 
April 8, 2021 – 7:30 p.m.  

 
The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in Regular Session and Public 
Hearing at the Mineral Springs Town Hall located at 3506 Potter Road South, Mineral Springs, North 
Carolina, at 7:30 p.m. on Thursday, April 8, 2021. 
 
Present: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Councilman Jerry Countryman, Councilwoman Janet 

Critz, Councilwoman Lundeen Cureton (arrived at 7:33 p.m.), Councilwoman Bettylyn 
Krafft, and Councilwoman Peggy Neill. 

 
Absent:  Mayor Pro Tem Valerie Coffey.  
 
Staff Present: Town Clerk/Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks, Attorney Bobby Griffin, and Deputy 

Town Clerk Janet Ridings. 
 
Visitors: Donald Gaddy and Charles Nolan.   
 
1. Opening  
 

With a quorum present at 7:32 p.m. on April 8, 2021, Mayor Frederick Becker called the Regular 
Town Council Meeting to order. 

Councilwoman Neill delivered the invocation. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Public Hearing – Proposed Text Amendment (TA-2021-02)   

Mayor Becker called the Proposed Text Amendment (TA-2021-02) Public Hearing to order at 7:33 
p.m. 

There were no public hearing comments. 

Applicant Charles Nolan stated he was the advocate for a text amendment to allow “Gunsmithing” 
by special permit in the RA20 zoning district.  Gunsmithing is currently allowed in the RA40 and RR 
zoning districts and the only distinction between these districts is the density of housing, unrelated 
to gunsmithing.  Mr. Nolan commented it was consistent with diversification; the Mineral Springs 
guide says, “you encourage diverse businesses”.  The town does not have a place for gunsmithing 
or sales of guns/rifles, etc.  Shooting is very popular in Mineral Springs, as well as the adjoining 
areas.  Mr. Nolan explained recently the one in Monroe (Gander Mountain) closed and moved to 
Concord or someplace inconvenient to travel to.  Mr. Nolan stated he would just like to serve the 
people in Mineral Springs, he lives right down the street and people can come right up to his house 
where he is going to do it initially until he can save up enough money to open a commercial shop in 
town. 

Councilwoman Critz asked Mr. Nolan how long he had been doing gunsmithing. 

Mr. Nolan responded he was a federal firearms license owner.  What happens when there is a 
change of address, the Department of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms wants to know that it is 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 92 

 
 
 
 
 

permitted where you live.  Currently it is not, so getting the text amendment is the first step toward 
the special permit process; right now, Mr. Nolan is on hold. 

Councilwoman Critz asked Mr. Nolan where he was previously working out of. 

Mr. Nolan responded he lived in Virginia and moved here with his wife in 2009.  Where Mr. Nolan 
lived in Virginia it was a permitted use, but when they moved here, they got the grandkids.  Now 
that they are gone, he asked his son to get a safe deposit box.  Mr. Nolan has a renewed interest 
in doing gunsmithing here. 

Councilman Countryman asked if Mr. Nolan was a gunsmith or if his primary interest was selling 
firearms. 

Mr. Nolan responded one of the requirements, as Councilman Countryman knows, if a person wants 
to buy a gun off the internet (for example), they have to have a FFL and holder to transfer the gun 
to them, so his primary business would probably be, “hey Chuck, I want this gun, will you order it, 
or I can order it, you give me a deposit”, but his primary purpose is to sell guns.  

Mayor Becker noted the application was extremely thorough and the planning board recommended 
approval of the amendment. 

Ms. Brooks concurred the planning board unanimously recommended approval.  Ms. Brooks 
clarified the text amendment would affect not only Mr. Nolan, but anybody in the RA20 zoning 
district. 

Mr. Nolan added there was one other thing he wanted to say, because it could be a point of concern.  
It is not easy to get an FFL, the FBI is all up your “wazoo”, so it would not be like anybody in the 
RA20 zoning district is eligible. 

Mayor Becker commented the FBI has its own licensing process that goes beyond the town, the 
town is just the vessel, being qualified is still going to be a separate process the applicant goes 
through on the federal level. 

Councilwoman Critz commented it was important to note the planning board did comment on the 
fact that it was consistent with Mineral Springs and our purpose/goals of being more rural; there are 
a lot of avid hunters/gun enthusiasts. 

Mayor Becker closed the Proposed Text Amendment (TA-2021-02) Public Hearing at 7:39 p.m.    

3. Consideration of the Proposed Text Amendment (TA-2021-02) – Action Item  

Councilwoman Neill motioned that the Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency applies, and 
Councilwoman Critz seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Countryman, Critz, 
Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  Nays: none.  

Councilwoman Neill motioned to approve the Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency and 
approve TA-2021-02 to allow Gunsmith by Special Use Permit in the RA20 zoning district and 
Councilwoman Critz seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.   Ayes: Countryman, Critz, 
Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  Nays: none. 

The Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency is as follows: 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 93 

 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency 
 

Mineral Springs Unified Development Ordinance 
Article 4 – Table 4.1 Permitted Uses 

 
In reference to the proposed text amendment to Article 4 – Table 4.1 Permitted Uses of the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance 
inserting an “S” (Special Use Permit) to “Gunsmith (including gun and ammunition sales)”, which is under Office & Service Uses in the 
RA20 zoning district.  

 
The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed text amendment to be “reasonable” as it allows property 
owners/occupants the ability to apply for a special use permit to establish a gunsmith business in the RA20 zoning districts. The Mineral 
Springs Town Council recognizes a Gunsmith must follow strict rules established by the Federal Government and this is a means for 
property owners/occupants to add to their income. 

 
The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed text amendment to be “consistent” with the Mineral Springs Land Use 
Plan adopted October 12, 2006 and the Vision Plan contained therein. The Future Land Use Plan calls for the areas now zoned RA20 to 
be Downtown Mixed Use, Highway Corridor, or Rural Residential (RR). Properties currently zoned RR already allows “Gunsmith” as a 
Special Use Permit, the Downtown Mixed-Use district is intended to become a unique retain, service and cultural, governmental, and 
mixed-use residential hub to serve the citizens of the town. 

 
 ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council on this the 8th day of April 2021. 

 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

 Attest: 
 

 ________________________________ 
 Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 

 
4. Public Comments 
 

 Chief Donald Gaddy – Mineral Springs Volunteer Fire and Rescue Department.  
 
5. Consent Agenda – Action Item 
 

Councilwoman Critz motioned to approve the consent agenda containing the March 11, 2021 
Regular Meeting Minutes, the February 2021 Tax Collector’s Report, and the February 2021 
Finance Report and Councilwoman Cureton seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: 
Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  Nays: None.   

6. Consideration of the Lowe’s “100 Hometowns” Grant for Downtown Revitalization – Action 
Item 

   

MEMO 

 To:  Mineral Springs Town Council 
 From: Rick Becker 
 Date: March 30, 2021 
 Subject: Lowe’s “100 Hometowns” Grant for Downtown Revitalization 
 

Lifelong Mineral Springs resident John Howie brought to my attention the Lowe’s Hometown Grant Program, which seeks to provide 
funding for 100 “Hometown Projects” designed to improve community resources and enable area revitalization. John believes that a 
project to revitalize the old Todd’s Grocery property in downtown Mineral Springs by removing hazardous asbestos siding from the 
dilapidated buildings on the property, demolishing the buildings, fully clearing the site and regrading to remove debris, and replanting 
with grass would be a good candidate for one of these grants, and he would like to nominate the project for a Lowe’s grant. 
 
The nomination process for a grant is spelled out on the attached “terms and conditions” writeup, which is lengthy and contains a lot of 
“legalese”. I have highlighted a few key provisions that would apply to Mineral Springs. In general, anybody can nominate a project for a 
grant, but a grant recipient must be a 501(c)(3) Non-Profit or a government entity that is capable and willing to use the grant funding to 
undertake the project. Projects must be able to be completed by October 31, 2021. Nominations must be submitted by April 19, 2021. 
 
One specific suggestion under “Possible Grant Uses” is “Area Revitalization (e.g. a new playground at a community park, small business 
renovation/repairs, renovations to downtown areas, etc.)”. That would seem to describe the proposed downtown Mineral Springs site 
revitalization to a “T”! And while the grant cannot be used for, say, “an individual that needs his/her home repaired” and a grant-funded 
project must “benefit the community as a whole”, there is no prohibition on using grant funding for a project on private property. The 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 94 

 
 
 
 
 

Mineral Springs town council has understandably been unwilling to utilize taxpayer dollars to improve private property, but serving as a 
“pass through” for a private grant to improve a piece of property that would produce a demonstrable community benefit should be an 
appropriate municipal function. 
 
I am working with John on his nomination. He has secured permission from the property owner to undertake the project, so I am requesting 
that the town council indicate by motion that the town approves of this project and would be willing to assist in coordinating the completion 
of the work if the nomination were selected for a grant.  
 
There is no local match required, and no specific cost specified by Lowe’s for a given project. The closest thing I could find to a monetary 
guideline is in one of the FAQ’s, where Lowe’s states that it is committing $10 million to 100 projects – an average of $100,000 per 
project. An early estimate of the cost of the downtown Mineral Springs project is $75,000, so that certainly seems to be in line with the 
size project that Lowe’s would be willing to fund. 
 

 Mayor Becker explained John Howie (Bill Howie’s son) had contacted him about the Lowe’s 
Hometowns Grant.  It is a long shot, but since it is a private grant, it seems flexible.  The way it 
works, if you read the fine print, they want a citizen to nominate a charity or government entity they 
think could undertake the project if they got the money.  John Howie is the applicant (Mayor Becker 
has worked with him on the application a little bit) who is a motivated guy and is friends with Hal 
Rape; this would be a benefit to Mr. Rape.  The application is strictly to pay to have the buildings 
and asbestos removed, to grade it flat, reseed it, and create a less dilapidated downtown to help 
promote the business district and improve the town. 

 Lowe’s “100 Hometowns” grant says they are committing $10,000,000 for 100 projects nationwide, 
which would be an average of $100,000.  Realtor John Maida has been interested in buying the 
property and has been talking to Mr. Howie to give him some information on what some of the site 
remediation costs would be and Mr. Maida has come up with an estimate of $75,000 to put on the 
Lowe’s application.  Mayor Becker stated it was a long shot, but it was also a fast-track thing; the 
applications close next week, a decision is made within a month or two, and the project has to be 
done by October 31st.   

 The obligation of the town would be to say, “we’re willing to do it and we are willing to oversee, if 
the money is available.”  The landowner has already told Mr. Howie he is happy with it.  Mayor 
Becker explained the town would be the facilitator because that is the way the grants appear to be 
written, it could be a nonprofit, 501C3, or municipality, but the person who applies is supposed to 
be an ordinary citizen. 

 Attorney Griffin asked what “facilitator” means and what were the obligations. 

 Mayor Becker responded the Lowe’s application says in their nine pages of legalese and their rules 
and regulations for the process there has to be “willingness of a nonprofit or government entity to 
facilitate and oversee the community project.”  The money from Lowe’s pays the price of the project, 
but Mayor Becker (on his salary) would call the contractors and make sure it is done. 

 Attorney Griffin asked what the town’s involvement, liability, and exposure would be if they got 
involved.  Will the town be the one who advertises for bids? 

 Mayor Becker responded he would hope not. 

 Attorney Griffin suggested the town should understand what their role would be.  “Facilitator” is a 
big broad word, a good word, but nevertheless how does that play out to be in practice.  

 Mayor Becker responded he thought if the town were going to sign a contract to receive the grant, 
the town would make sure Attorney Griffin read it over. 

 Attorney Griffin commented he was thinking what the town might want to do is to make an inquiry 
in advance, so there is some notion of what the council is going to commit to be done. 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 95 

 
 
 
 
 

 Councilwoman Critz commented Mayor Becker should follow through with whatever is necessary 
and proceed to get it done. 

 Mayor Becker responded the council could say “go forward”, but Mr. Howie has to apply by April 
19th.  If it looks like the project gets approved, Mayor Becker thought he would continue to keep an 
eye on it.  Mayor Becker did not know what Lowe’s was going to do or how they were going to notify 
people; Mr. Howie is the contact. 

 Mayor Becker agreed with Attorney Griffin, the town needs to know what they are doing, because 
the town would probably be subject to the usual municipal bidding process. 

 Councilwoman Critz stated she read through it and her thought was (on page 5 item 6) that “Judging 
and selection of grant recipients that the application is really the only thing that’s going before them 
in what they call the first round.”  Councilwoman Critz guessed they would take however many they 
get and narrow it down.  The second round says, “those judges will score and rate the submissions 
at the Lowe’s sole and absolute discretion based on the following criteria”, and then it says, “a 
balanced number of community projects in urban/rural communities”, “disperse geographical reach 
across the United States”, “cultural and socioeconomical diversity of the communities served”, and 
then it ends with “willingness of a nonprofit or government entity to facilitate and oversee the 
community project.” 

Attorney Griffin referred to the top of page 7 and 9 where it says, “shall not be held responsible for 
any delays in awarding or fulfilling a grant or completing a project for any reason” and said he liked 
what it said, but he has not really read through it until now.  Attorney Griffin commented he assumed 
that would be the town.  On page 9 it says, “release and agree to indemnify and hold harmless”, 
which are good things to have.  
  
Mayor Becker commented if it came to the second round, he thought they would ask for more input 
from the town and if the town were willing to handle it, that would be when the town attorney would 
have to really read over anything the town was going to sign.  Mayor Becker suggested, at this early 
stage, the council just needed to be able to basically say they would be willing to go to the next step 
if Mr. Howie makes the application and gets selected for the next step.  “The council just has to 
express their willingness to accept Mr. Howie’s interest in doing this”, Mayor Becker said. 
 

 Councilwoman Critz motioned that we move forward with this grant and that if we get to phase two, 
we will be sure that all those “i’s” are dotted, and “t’s” are crossed, and Councilwoman Neill 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  
Nays: None.   

7. Consideration of Returning to Town Hall for Monthly Meetings and Reopening Town Hall 
During Normal Business Hours – Action Item 

 
MEMO 

 
 To:  Town Council 
 From: Vicky Brooks 
 Date: April 1, 2021 
 Re: Agenda Item # 7 – Consideration of Returning to Town Hall for Monthly Meetings and Reopening Town Hall During Normal Business 

Hours 
 

In April of 2020, the town council passed a resolution allowing electronic meetings.  It is my belief that the town council should not pass 
a resolution suspending that resolution at this time, because there may be a need to have electronic meetings in the future depending 
on COVID-19 surges.  There are reports that a surge is taking place now, so we do need to proceed with caution and follow any Executive 
Order issued by Governor Cooper under the State of Emergency. 

 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 96 

 
 
 
 
 

There will be a public hearing at the next two monthly meetings (May and June).  In July of 2020, the council decided by unanimous vote 
to have town hall open by appointment only with anyone coming having their temperature checked, filling out a questionnaire, and wearing 
a mask.  This procedure has been working well during this period; however, it is up to the council whether you want to keep that procedure 
in place or to open town hall up to the public, so people can just come in when they want during normal business hours.  Of course, we 
would want to keep the COVID-19 safety features in place (temperature, questionnaire, mask) if we open back up to the public. 

 
 Mayor Becker explained the council would discuss regular monthly meetings and day-to-day office 

hours. 

 Councilman Countryman asked if there was any objection to coming back into town hall and working 
with an open door. 

 Ms. Brooks responded that Ms. Ridings and herself have been at town hall every Monday, Tuesday, 
and Thursday anyway, but the door is locked. 

 Councilman Countryman asked if all business transactions were by appointment only. 

 Ms. Brooks responded they are, but she is still doing a lot digitally, because people have gotten into 
that kind of routine.  Ms. Brooks explained when she had to sign a plat, people would call her and 
say they were coming sometimes, but sometimes they would just show up and she would work with 
them.  Ms. Brooks commented it was up to the council whether they wanted the door to be unlocked 
when staff is at town hall. 

 Councilman Countryman responded it had a lot to do with how staff felt about it too. 

 Ms. Brooks noted if only one staff member is at town hall the door remains locked.  Ms. Brooks 
explained prior to the pandemic when Ms. Ridings and she were at town hall the door was open and 
people could just walk in.  Since Ms. Ridings is the first person to see somebody that comes in the 
door, the council may want to ask her how she feels about it.   

 Ms. Ridings responded she was fine, whatever Ms. Brooks would like is okay with her. 

 Councilman Countryman stated he thought the door should be open, because “we’re at a stage 
where we need to open it back”. 

 Ms. Ridings explained there is not a lot of traffic anyway, Ms. Brooks is doing a lot more things over 
email, the phone, and digitally; business has not stopped because of that.  Ms. Ridings stated she 
was okay with it. 

 Councilman Countryman asked Ms. Brooks if she was okay with it. 

 Ms. Brooks responded sure.  

 Councilman Countryman motioned that we open it back up, open the town hall for routine business 
and Councilwoman Cureton seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Countryman, Critz, 
Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  Nays: None. 

 Councilwoman Critz motioned to continue to meet at the town hall for our monthly meetings and 
Councilwoman Neill seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Countryman, Critz, 
Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  Nays: None.  

 Councilwoman Krafft suggested the council leave it open, so that if there is a surge that the council 
can go back, because surges are coming. 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 97 

 
 
 
 
 

 Mayor Becker responded he was concerned, but he wanted to ask Attorney Griffin if there was 
something that changed, was there some legislation about a local State of Emergency where the 
town could make a decision. 

 Attorney Griffin responded he was not sure, the headlines/reports were that they are considering 
various bills to take emergency powers away from the governor and locals too.  Attorney Griffin was 
not sure what had passed and what had not.   

Mayor Becker commented there was still the county State of Emergency, which the town has kept 
in effect, so he thought the town had latitude in the State of Emergency to close town hall again. 

Councilwoman Krafft mentioned the number of COVID instances in Union County are up. 

Mayor Becker agreed the town needed to be careful and we do have the option to immediately say 
“no, we are going to do the meetings by ZOOM again”, the option is there during a State of 
Emergency.  The town did adopt a resolution authorizing the council to do remote meetings, so that 
is kind of an ongoing authority. 

Ms. Brooks agreed that would be correct until the council rescinds the resolution.  Ms. Brooks asked 
if next month the surge goes way up and staff thinks that it may not be in the best interest of the 
public, staff, council to come to town hall for the meeting, would that call be up to the council or staff 
based on what is being read on the surge. 

Mayor Becker explained the town has been doing what the county does and they are having in 
person meetings.  

There was further discussion on what to do if a surge occurred and the town needed to go back to 
meeting via ZOOM. 

Councilwoman Critz motioned that we continue to meet in person and that it can be rescinded if the 
protocol from the emergency services in Union County change, we can rescind meeting in person 
and go back to ZOOM if necessary and Councilman Countryman seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  Ayes: Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  Nays: None.   

8. Consideration of Requesting Benchmark Planning to Begin Working with the Town to 
Rewrite the Land Use Plan – Action Item  

 

Ms. Brooks explained the current Land Use Plan (LUP) was adopted in May of 2006 and there are 
many actions in that plan that have already been accomplished.  In addition, the current LUP 
specifically refers to the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances, which the town no longer has; it is now 
a Unified Development Ordinance.  The new 160D-501(A) says that the town must adopt a 
comprehensive plan or LUP by July 2022 and that plan must be reasonably maintained.  Ms. Brooks 
stated since the last plan was [adopted] in 2006, it had a few issues in itself, and it was time for the 
town to work with someone to update the LUP.  Ms. Brooks recommended Benchmark Planning, 
who are the same people who did all the zoning changes; however, if the council thinks she should 
ask other planning companies she could do that.  Ms. Brooks does feel comfortable working with 
Benchmark, believes they will do a good job, and feels they will listen as long as she knows what to 
tell them. 

For clarification, Ms. Brooks explained this was just a very early stage of getting Benchmark 
Planning to give the town a quote for their service.  The actual process of updating the LUP will go 
through the planning board [and town council]. 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 98 

 
 
 
 
 

Councilwoman Krafft noted the heart of the LUP has not changed, it just needs to be updated.  The 
last thing the town did with Benchmark Planning there were some things Councilwoman Krafft did 
not feel like they necessarily listened to the town about; they kind of went their own way.  

Ms. Brooks added the town will probably want to come up with more goals and actions in the new 
plan, which will be in the scope. 

Councilwoman Critz asked staff to make the council copies of the current LUP, so they could do a 
cursory view of it.  

Councilwoman Krafft suggested getting a quote from Benchmark and someone else, so the council 
will have at least two to compare. 

Ms. Brooks suggested N-Focus was a good planning company, as well as Centralina Council of 
Governments (COG). 

Councilwoman Krafft asked if COG was who Nadine worked with. 

Ms. Brooks responded yes. 

Mayor Becker added Nadine is now working with N-Focus. 

Councilwoman Krafft stated Nadine had the “heart of us”, she did not try to change the town, she 
tried to accept the town, and work with the town.  Councilwoman Krafft did not get that impression 
with the last person.  

Councilman Countryman suggested getting bids from both companies. 

Councilwoman Critz added to specifically ask for Nadine at N-Focus. 

Councilwoman Krafft motioned that Ms. Brooks get two quotes from the two different companies, 
Benchmark and N-Focus and specifically ask for Nadine Bennett at N-Focus to revise our Land Use 
Plan, so it fits the new criteria and Councilman Countryman seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.    Ayes: Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  Nays: None. 

9.  Consideration of Appointing a Delegate for the NCLM 2021-2022 League Board of Directors 
– Action Item 

 

  Mayor Becker asked Councilwoman Neill if she would be the delegate for voting for the League 
Board of Directors.  

  Councilwoman Neil responded, “of course, I’ll do it.” 
 
  Councilman Countryman motioned to appoint Councilwoman Neill to take the vote for the North 

Carolina League Board of Directors and Councilwoman Cureton seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  Ayes: Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  Nays: None.  

10.  FY2021-2022 Budget: Preliminary Departmental Appropriations – Action Item 
  

 MEMO 

 To:  Mineral Springs Town Council 
 From: Rick Becker 
 Date: March 29, 2021 
 Subject: FY2021-2022 Budget: Preliminary Departmental Appropriations 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 99 

 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying spreadsheet shows the FY2019-20 final budget and actual expenditures, the FY2020-21 current budget and 
estimated final actual expenditures, and suggested appropriation levels for the FY2021-22 budget. 

 
I am recommending keeping most proposed expenditures the same as last year’s except for the usual salary and hourly wage increases 
and other items that change based on established formulas or trends. This "first draft" suggests an increase of $4,091 over the current 
year's operating expenditure budget, or 1.24%. This figure again reflects the 3% increase in staff salaries that council has consistently 
approved over the past several years. This presents a more accurate estimate of what the budget officer anticipates happening with 
these salaries, but council must still decide whether or not to apply any increases. Note that the "Assistant/Deputy" position has increased 
from a $11,500 budget amount to $12,300; this is not a salaried position, and the $12,300 is a maximum suggested allocation for the 
position. Currently, this position requires 12 hours per week, corresponding to the time the town hall is open for regular business hours. 
The hourly rate for this position is currently $18.45. 

 
 Reading the Chart 
 

In the right-hand column, headed "2021-22 proposed", bold-faced numbers are the totals within each budgetary department. These 
numbers add up to the total of $333,166. These are the categories that ultimately end up in the adopted budget ordinance and within 
which the town must operate; numbers within these departments are "flexible," and may be changed during the fiscal year as needed 
without budget amendments as long as the departmental totals in the ordinance are not increased. Salaries are shown in white, reflecting 
amounts 3% above last fiscal year. “Employee Overhead” is also shown in white and is proposed to increase by $2,500 next year. The 
three sets of figures in the "dotted" cells are simply sub-subcategories within subcategories. 

 
 Increases and Decreases 
 

Most other line items are very close to last year’s. Although we are still operating under some limitations as a result of COVID-19 I am 
recommending that we establish the budget as if things were almost “back to normal” starting on July 1, 2021 – with the exception of the 
September 2021 Festival which has been canceled. An amount in the budget does NOT have to result in an expenditure but budgeting 
all items as usual provides taxpayers with the most realistic idea of the maximum amount the town is likely to spend in the next fiscal 
year. Major changes in proposed expenditures are: 

 
1. “Charities”: Based on 3% of previous fiscal year budget, per town policy. Decreased from $10,825 to $10,545. 
2. “Community – Special Events: Festival”: The 2021 Festival has already been canceled, but as the fiscal year progresses and 

more certainty emerges on the COVID front there may be opportunities to operate some “scaled-back” festive events. Keeping an 
appropriation in place would allow such events to be funded without amending the budget. Decreased from $10,000 to $5,000. 

3. “Elections”: There will be a municipal election in 2021, so this appropriation is Increased from $0 to $3,300.  
4. “Employee Overhead”: The NC Local Government Employees’ Retirement System contribution rate has increased, and any salary 

increases will also result in additional increases in LGERS, FICA, and Workers Compensation contributions. There have been small 
increases in the NCLM benefits as well. Increased from $30,200 to $35,000. 

5. “Planning – Zoning Ordinance”: Some changes to the UDO that will bring it into compliance with new NC G.S. Chapter 160D 
requirements are currently being undertaken. There may be some additional changes to be made as the UDO is reviewed by 
planning staff and the planning board. No Change from $5,000. 

6. “Planning – Land Use Plans”: The planning director is recommending updating and revising the Comprehensive plan, currently 
called the Land Use Plan. Funds have been allocated each year for this effort but a new plan has not yet been developed. This 
appropriation has been unused in prior years, but in light of the more pressing need for the Comprehensive Plan we will likely need 
these funds in FY2021-22. No Change from $5,000. 
 

 Other Items of Note: 
 

Most other line items and departmental appropriations remain very close to FY2020-21 levels. The budget amounts approved by council 
in recent years appear to be representing the town’s overall spending priorities quite well, and as such there is no need to modify those 
budget amounts. 

 
 At the April 8, 2021 meeting, council should consider three items related to the budget:  

1. determine salary and hourly figures for next year  
2. decide on whether or not to include any of the proposed changes in the FY2021-22 budget 
3. advise the budget officer of any changes council might wish to make to other appropriations so that the formal proposed budget 

may be presented to council in May. 
 

 Mayor Becker explained he tried to keep the budget the same as last year; revenues are not being 
budgeted yet, because he has not gone through the new tax evaluation process.  Mayor Becker 
noted the town was not having the festival this September, which would be on the upcoming budget, 
but he did leave funding for something (maybe a Christmas Tree Lighting, ice cream social in the 
spring) in that category, so there is funding appropriated if the council thinks the town should pursue 
something on a smaller scale.  Everything else is very much the same.  Next month, the council will 
get the proposed budget with a revenue neutral tax rate, which will probably be about two cents; it 
is up to the council if they want to accept that, and the budget would be the same dollar amount as 
it has been with an increase based on growth and inflation.  This is done every time there is a 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 100 

 
 
 
 
 

reevaluation.  Mayor Becker asked the council if they saw any glaring things that were wrong with 
the preliminary departmental appropriations or if they wanted to change anything.  Mayor Becker 
pointed out the council had three things to do: determine the salary and hourly figures, and decide 
if they wanted to change anything. 

Councilwoman Critz asked if the council always based their decision on salary increases on cost of 
living. 

Mayor Becker responded they have always been a little above because it is a combination of 
merit/cost of living; everyone has been getting 3% for the past few years and cost of living might be 
1.5%.  

Councilwoman Cureton asked if Councilwoman Critz meant in other words she thought the council 
could get a raise. 

Councilwoman Critz responded she was referring to the staff and getting a cost of living raise on 
their salaries, she was not referring to the council, but she was very open to what Councilwoman 
Cureton might add.   

Councilwoman Cureton stated, “I deserve a raise, I don’t know about you all, you may not need it 
or want it, but I think a raise would be fine”.  

Mayor Becker explained council salaries are different from staff salaries in terms of how they are 
set, but that was a council decision; they are basically an honorarium, no one is living on $150 a 
month.  It is a stipend.  

Councilwoman Critz stated she would call other similar municipalities to get a comparison on the 
salaries of their council members and then the council could decide if they wanted to take a 
percentage of that or not change it at all.   

Councilwoman Cureton noted Councilwoman Critz would be shocked and the council would not get 
the same thing as other towns, because they would never approve it.  

Mayor Becker responded unless he heard otherwise, he would keep it in the recommended budget, 
because the council will be discussing it next month.  If the council comes up with some suggestions 
to change the council salaries that could go into the final adopted budget in June.  Mayor Becker 
asked that Councilwoman Critz take the initiative to look into council salaries since Councilwoman 
Cureton wanted her to.  Mayor Becker noted he knew the council salaries have been on the low 
side and pointed out the council has one meeting a month and some towns have two.  Mayor Becker 
stated the council members have been easy on the taxpayers in terms of what they have asked for 
in a stipend.  

Councilwoman Krafft asked if we knew what the tax rates in Union County were going to be. 

Mayor Becker responded no, because the county is doing exactly what Mineral Springs is doing, 
they are not going to set a tax rate, there will probably be a recommended tax rate from the manager 
coming out in May, just like Mineral Springs will.  It will be lower obviously because the evaluations 
are high.  The county may not even have a firm presentation of the recommended tax rate when 
Mineral Springs presents the budget in May, because of the size of the county budget they are going 
to be fighting it out for quite a while.  The county commissioners meet twice a month, plus they will 
have separate budget workshops and those mostly are all available online (they are streamed) and 
that can be helpful.  Sometimes it is better just to see the document, so you can read it, because 
while they are deliberating it gets confusing because their budget is so big.  



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 101 

 
 
 
 
 

Councilwoman Critz stated she thought it was worth looking into for the sake of our community, the 
evaluations were needed, but we are in a position right now of not having enough houses.  There is 
a shortage of houses because we have more people wanting houses.  “You see all the building 
around you and think how in the world could that possibly be, but I heard recently from, I think it was 
Dean Arp, I’m not going to say it was for sure, but from one of the legislators, North Carolina 
Legislators, that they’ve literally proven that we are in a housing shortage”, Councilwoman Critz 
said.  Houses are selling way above normal prices because there is a shortage, so there are bidding 
wars.  “There was a house in our community that sold for like $60,000 above the asking price 
because they got in a bidding war and so we have an unusual situation I believe, of having maybe 
not a realistic housing market right now, so I think for the sake of our community we might need to 
watch what the commissioners are doing with the rate”, Councilwoman Critz said. 

Mayor Becker commented the tax values had already been set based on sales six months to a year 
ago and it has been accelerating since then, so it would not surprise him if the revaluation rates 
right now were going to be low, because prices are sometimes surpassing the new values, because 
the new values have come out, but there is nothing that can be done about it.  

Mayor Becker explained there were two separate things: actual retail and the tax value and those 
are different.  The tax values have gone up a lot for most everybody.  Mineral Springs tax rate is 2.5 
cents.  Mayor Becker noted he got an estimate from the county last week for Mineral Springs alone 
and thought if the town dropped the tax rate to 2 cents that would be close to revenue neutral and 
that would be close to the same income for the town.  Mayor Becker stated he would have to do a 
much more careful calculation when he presented the budget; the county will be required to do the 
same thing.  The county will be using those revaluation numbers, they are not going on sales taking 
place now, plus there will be appeals, so some of them are being lowered. 

Councilwoman Krafft commented when the guy did the presentation, he said the revaluations were 
going to be an average of 30 to 35%. 

Mayor Becker responded that was what they did in Mineral Springs based on what our total is, it 
was something like $270,000,000 and for the total real property valuation it is now close to 
$400,000,000.  Mineral Springs has gone up over $100,000,000, which is about 30%.  If Mineral 
Springs does not roll the rate back, keeping it at 2.5 cents, Mayor Becker did a calculation based 
on the number he got from the county and it would be approximately $94,000 in property tax a year, 
which is up from $66,000 for the current year on real property, so it is has gone up 30%.  Vehicle 
taxes are separate and are taxed at the same rate, but their values have not gone up, so that will 
have to be built into the tax rate, because the town could undercut itself on vehicles.  In Mineral 
Springs, vehicles are approximately $30,000,000 in total value.  In summary, if the rate is kept at 
2.5 cents the town would bring in approximately $94,000 and that would be a $30,000 a year 
increase.  Mayor Becker explained he would be presenting the council with a budget that keeps it 
the same and be able to pay for the appropriations the council is looking at. 

Councilwoman Krafft thought it would be a better idea if the rate is 2.5 cents to just cut it a little and 
not go straight to 2 cents, so that there is a little increase in the revenue, but not too much.  This 
would give the town extra income for the projects the town wants to do for the community as it 
develops.   

Mayor Becker responded the town has always cut the tax rate whenever there was a revaluation.  
It went from 4 cents in 1999 to 3 cents with the first revaluation and then it went to 2.5 cents.  Mayor 
Becker stated Councilwoman Krafft made a good point, because it is not a big dollar amount for the 
taxpayers.  As an example, Mayor Becker explained a house worth $200,000 would be paying $50 
annually to Mineral Springs, if the revaluation increased the house to $300,000, that would be a 



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 102 

 
 
 
 
 

50% increase making their Mineral Springs tax $75 annually “if we didn’t lower it, so we are beating 
up our taxpayers with it”, Mayor Becker said. 

Councilwoman Critz asked Mayor Becker to provide the council with the current rate so they could 
look at it and either stay with it and use it as a savings towards a future project the town wants to 
do (community center) or they could cut it back.  

Mayor Becker responded he was required to do revenue neutral calculations by law, but he would 
look at what Councilwoman Krafft was saying and recommend a rate that is above revenue neutral, 
but he will look to see what the council has done in the past. 

Councilwoman Krafft stated, “we’re not asking to raise it all”. 

Mayor Becker responded no.  The council just wants to make sure they are respecting the concerns 
of the taxpayers.  A lot of taxpayers forgot this was done five years ago by the county, but people 
just got that whooping big revaluation number, and they think their taxes are going to go up.  If the 
county taxes are 80 cents and Mineral Springs is 2.5 cents, that is a big dollar amount to the 
taxpayer.  The town does have to be careful to be respectful of those concerns and make sure they 
are aware of what people are worried about in terms of tax increases.  Mayor Becker concurred with 
Councilwoman Krafft, that the town did not have to go to zero. 

Councilwoman Krafft stated she was all for saving money, but the council could come to a 
compromise and be able to put some money back for the big projects that the town really wants to 
do for the community.  

Mayor Becker explained that would be on the capital side, which is what is left over after all the bills 
are paid.  That amount has been going down every year for the past two or three years, because 
the town has not raised the rate and there has not been much increase in other taxes.  The town is 
picking up the slack by cutting the capital each time; that amount is down to $25,000 and maybe it 
should go back up to $40,000.  

Mayor Becker asked for a motion on the 3% recommendation on the staff salaries.  

Councilwoman Critz stated she would do the research on the council salaries. 

Councilwoman Critz motioned to keep the staff salary increases at 3% and Councilwoman Krafft 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  
Nays: None.        

11. Staff Updates 
 

 There were no staff reports. 

12.  Other Business  
 

 Councilwoman Critz mentioned a house on McNeely Road that she had been talking to Ms. Brooks 
and Councilwoman Neill about.  Councilwoman Critz also submitted some photographs to Ms. 
Brooks.  Councilwoman Critz explained there were a lot of violations: boats, jet skis, a million trucks 
with trailers hooked to them like they are construction; and then they have a building.  All of this is 
in front of the house.  Some of these things would be fine in the side or rear, but this is “like really 
way out of and very overwhelming.”  Councilwoman Critz stated she did not know how many people 
were living in the house (it is not necessarily the town’s concern), but there are multiple violations 
of stuff in the front and side yards.  Councilwoman Critz noted she brought this to the attention of 
the council, because she thought “it is something we should action upon.”  



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 103 

 
 
 
 
 

 Councilwoman Cureton suggested checking out the house right beside her.  Councilwoman Cureton 
explained she had to call Chief Gaddy after the people that own the house came out and made a 
fire and left it burning; the firemen put it out.  Councilwoman Cureton stated she had eleven mice in 
her house, so she had to do all her vents and seal up everything, so they do not come in; everybody 
out there has been having a problem. “It’s worse as anything you could see, but I’d like to buy it, but 
he won’t sell it”, Councilwoman Cureton stated. 

 Councilwoman Cureton thanked everybody who donated money to the Mr. Brown dedication that 
was done on the 27th; it was really nice and the mayor was there.  Councilwoman Cureton has some 
DVD’s if anyone would like to buy one for $10. 

 Councilwoman Critz mentioned a bogus email from Mr. Krafft concerning Zooming this meeting, 
and stated the town needed to see what was going on. 

 Councilwoman Krafft responded the funny part was that Mr. Krafft was not even awake yet when it 
the email went through. 

 Councilwoman Critz stated her point was “all of us” individually get bogus things, but this seems to 
be sponsored by the town. 

 Mayor Becker responded, “we have to be aware of those kinds of spoofs, because they are getting 
group email addresses, some of that is visible to somebody who’s had an email.”  Mayor Becker 
suggested everyone just has to be careful what they click on.   

 Councilwoman Neill commented it was so legitimate that she had to call Councilwoman Critz to ask 
if something was going on that she didn’t know about. 

 Councilwoman Neill asked Ms. Brooks when was the last time they had a newsletter. 

 Ms. Brooks responded, “last festival.” 

 Councilwoman Neill asked the council if they thought it might be time for a newsletter; there are a 
lot of things to highlight (new businesses, expansions).  Councilwoman Neill stated she did not want 
to add to Ms. Brooks workload, but it has been a while. 

 Councilwoman Critz suggested the newsletter could let people know what the council is doing; trying 
to meet in person as long as they can safely. 

 Mayor Becker asked Ms. Brooks if she had any thoughts on it, he knew she wanted to do a 
newsletter since she had mentioned it to him a couple of times.   

 Attorney Griffin commented in some other towns the mayor does it [newsletter]. 

 Ms. Brooks explained it had been a trying and busy year for her and the newsletter was always at 
the bottom of her list. 

 Councilwoman Critz asked if it was the putting it together, getting enough, or the actual function of 
doing it.  The council could volunteer to write articles if that would be helpful. 

 Ms. Brooks responded sometimes having volunteers do something makes the work harder for her. 

 Councilwoman Critz suggested Ms. Brooks talk about it and get back to the council, because they 
could help with articles possibly.      



 
 
 
 
 

April 8, 2021 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 22  Page | 104 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
13. Adjournment – Action Item 

 

 At 8:47 p.m. Councilwoman Critz motioned to adjourn the meeting and Councilwoman Neill 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill.  
Nays: None.   
 

 The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, May 13, 2021 at 7:30 p.m. at the Mineral Springs 
Town Hall.  
 

 
 

Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
             
  Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk  Frederick Becker III, Mayor  





Mineral Springs Prior Years Property Tax Report

March 2021

March 31, 2021 2011

BEGINNING CHARGE $64,878.42

PUBLIC UTILITIES $1,319.20

MINIMAL RELEASES ($145.21)

DISCOVERIES $61.82

ABATEMENTS (RELEASES) ($301.25)

TOTAL CHARGE $65,812.98

PREVIOUS COLLECTIONS $65,767.98

PREVIOUS BALANCE DUE $19.54 $19.54

COLLECTIONS - TAX $0.00

COLLECTIONS - INTEREST/FEES $0.00

GROSS MONTHLY COLLECTIONS

MISC. ADJUSTMENTS

TOTAL TAX COLLECTED TO DATE $65,767.98

BALANCE OUTSTANDING $17.32 $17.32

PERCENTAGE COLLECTED 99.93%

Prepared by Janet Ridings 01/12/21 Page 1



Mineral Springs Unpaid Property Taxes - Real and Personal as of March 31, 2021

Name Tax Map Number 2011 Total

$6.88848391CAROLINA STREET SUPPLY, SHEPPARD JONATHAN
$10.441812652COOMBER CUSTOM MASONRY LLC

Total $17.32 $17.32

Monday, May 03, 2021 Page 1 of 1







7/1/2020-
Category 3/31/2021

    Interest Income 3,137.29

    Other Inc

        Festival 2020

            Vendor -75.00

            TOTAL Festival 2020 -75.00

        Zoning 2,890.00

        TOTAL Other Inc 2,815.00

    Prop Tax 2020

        Receipts 2020

            Int 79.32

            Tax 68,484.27

            TOTAL Receipts 2020 68,563.59

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2020 68,563.59

    Prop Tax 2021

        Receipts 2021

            Prepayments 53.73

            TOTAL Receipts 2021 53.73

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2021 53.73

    Prop Tax Prior Years

        Prop Tax 2010

            Receipts 2010

                Int 2.30

                Tax 2.22

                TOTAL Receipts 2010 4.52

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2010 4.52

        Prop Tax 2011

            Receipts 2011

                Int 2.10

                Tax 2.22

                TOTAL Receipts 2011 4.32

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2011 4.32

        Prop Tax 2014

            Receipts 2014

                Int 0.25

                Tax 7.20

                TOTAL Receipts 2014 7.45

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2014 7.45

        Prop Tax 2015

            Receipts 2015

                Int 4.36

                Tax 0.00

                TOTAL Receipts 2015 4.36

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2015 4.36

        Prop Tax 2016

            Receipts2016

                Int 5.97

                Tax 16.35

                TOTAL Receipts2016 22.32

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2016 22.32

Cash Flow Report FY2020 YTD
7/1/2020 through 3/31/2021

5/1/2021 Page 1



7/1/2020-
Category 3/31/2021

        Prop Tax 2017

            Receipts2017

                Int 4.73

                Tax 19.88

                TOTAL Receipts2017 24.61

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2017 24.61

        Prop Tax 2018

            Receipts

                Int 13.07

                Tax 57.06

                TOTAL Receipts 70.13

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2018 70.13

        Prop Tax 2019

            Receipts 2019

                Int 19.67

                Tax 213.99

                TOTAL Receipts 2019 233.66

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2019 233.66

        TOTAL Prop Tax Prior Years 371.37

    Sales Tax

        Cable TV 9,678.84

        Electricity 109,289.54

        Natural Gas Excise 223.78

        Sales & Use Dist 17,167.49

        telecommunications 1,770.17

        TOTAL Sales Tax 138,129.82

    Veh Tax

        Int 2020 35.17

        Tax 2020 5,608.44

        TOTAL Veh Tax 5,643.61

    Ads 69.65

    Attorney 2,700.00

    Audit 4,730.00

    Capital Outlay

        Equipment 2,454.00

        TOTAL Capital Outlay 2,454.00

    Charities & Agencies 2,375.00

    Community

        Greenway 1,245.28

        Maint 3,050.35

        Parks & Rec

            Park 1,798.70

            TOTAL Parks & Rec 1,798.70

        Special Events

            Services 4,000.00

            TOTAL Special Events 4,000.00

        TOTAL Community 10,094.33

    Emp

Cash Flow Report FY2020 YTD
7/1/2020 through 3/31/2021

5/1/2021 Page 2



7/1/2020-
Category 3/31/2021

        Benefits

            Dental 820.00

            Life 520.80

            NCLGERS 11,953.71

            Vision 140.00

            TOTAL Benefits 13,434.51

        Bond 550.00

        FICA

            Med 1,391.85

            Soc Sec 5,950.02

            TOTAL FICA 7,341.87

        Payroll 1,498.05

        Work Comp 2,056.00

        TOTAL Emp 24,880.43

    Office

        Clerk 28,872.00

        Council 8,100.00

        Deputy Clerk 8,377.62

        Dues 5,990.26

        Equip 1,425.63

        Finance Officer 26,667.00

        Ins 3,267.67

        Maint

            Materials 175.35

            Service 5,441.40

            TOTAL Maint 5,616.75

        Mayor 3,600.00

        Post 510.20

        Records 5,092.32

        Supplies 1,439.70

        Tel 5,508.89

        Util 4,688.46

        TOTAL Office 109,156.50

    Planning

        Administration

            Contract 1,294.92

            Salaries 24,957.00

            TOTAL Administration 26,251.92

        Misc 831.38

        Ordinance Changes 280.00

        TOTAL Planning 27,363.30

    Street Lighting 694.38

    Tax Coll

        Contract 1,202.81

        Sal 225.00

        TOTAL Tax Coll 1,427.81

    Training

        Staff 275.76

        TOTAL Training 275.76

    Travel 368.78

Cash Flow Report FY2020 YTD
7/1/2020 through 3/31/2021

5/1/2021 Page 3



7/1/2020-
Category 3/31/2021

    FROM Check Min Spgs 110,000.00

    FROM MM Sav ParkSterling 100,000.00

    TO MM Sav ParkSterling -110,000.00

    TO South State CD -100,000.00

Cash Flow Report FY2020 YTD
7/1/2020 through 3/31/2021

5/1/2021 Page 4



6/29/2020 6/30/2020 7/31/2020 8/31/2020 9/30/2020 10/31/2020 11/30/2020
Account Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance

        Check Min Spgs 84,738.71 84,441.45 51,105.04 35,026.47 31,724.67 20,959.01 8,805.82

        MM Sav ParkSterling 619,614.94 619,750.75 619,882.34 620,013.96 570,140.68 570,257.83 570,330.48

        NCCMT_Cash 2,357.24 2,357.40 2,357.54 2,357.63 2,357.67 2,357.69 2,357.71

        South State CD 206,460.52 206,460.52 206,460.52 207,313.97 307,618.66 307,618.66 307,618.66

        State Revenues Receivable 0.00 60,342.45 57,639.53 55,462.21 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Accounts Payable 692.76 2,247.05 692.76 692.76 692.76 692.76 692.76

Account Balances History Report - As of 3/31/2021
(Includes unrealized gains)

5/2/2021 Page 1



12/31/2020 1/31/2021 2/28/2021 3/31/2021
Account Balance Balance Balance Balance

        Check Min Spgs 32,057.47 33,878.40 24,480.25 62,216.79

        MM Sav ParkSterling 630,403.88 630,479.01 630,527.38 630,584.39

        NCCMT_Cash 2,357.73 2,357.75 2,357.77 2,357.79

        South State CD 308,193.83 308,193.83 308,193.83 308,763.78

        State Revenues Receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Accounts Payable 692.76 692.76 692.76 692.76

Account Balances History Report - As of 3/31/2021
(Includes unrealized gains)

5/2/2021 Page 2



Mineral Springs Monthly Revenue Summary 2020-21

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS

REVENUE SUMMARY 2020-21

Property Tax - prior 600.00$ 228.63$ 371.37$ 61.9% 4.52$ 57.10$ 18.47$ 39.40$ (5.99)$
Property Tax - 2020 67,210.00$ (1,353.59)$ 68,563.59$ 102.0% -$ 333.44$ 5,713.94$ 3,188.44$ 3,676.50$
Fund Balance Approp. -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Interest 5,825.00$ 2,687.71$ 3,137.29$ 53.9% 131.73$ 985.16$ 431.45$ 117.17$ 72.67$
Sales Tax - Electric 207,000.00$ 97,710.46$ 109,289.54$ 52.8% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Sales Tax - Sales & Use 21,400.00$ 4,232.51$ 17,167.49$ 80.2% -$ -$ 2,572.44$ 2,406.60$ 2,182.40$
Sales Tax - Other Util. 22,995.00$ 11,322.21$ 11,672.79$ 50.8% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Sales Tax - Alc. Bev. 13,015.00$ 13,015.00$ -$ 0.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

 Vehicle Taxes 7,935.00$ 2,291.39$ 5,643.61$ 71.1% -$ 822.14$ -$ 1,522.09$ 730.49$
Zoning Fees 2,500.00$ (390.00)$ 2,890.00$ 115.6% 100.00$ 500.00$ 360.00$ 100.00$ 205.00$
Other 3,000.00$ 3,021.27$ (21.27)$ -0.7% -$ (75.00)$ -$ -$ -$

Property Tax - prior 6.19$ 99.39$ 128.31$ 23.98$
Property Tax - 2020 31,196.45$ 17,246.74$ 5,376.86$ 1,831.22$
Fund Balance Approp. -$ -$ -$ -$
Interest 648.59$ 75.15$ 48.39$ 626.98$
Sales Tax - Electric 60,943.13$ -$ -$ 48,346.41$
Sales Tax - Sales & Use 2,420.57$ 2,396.90$ 2,454.87$ 2,733.71$
Sales Tax - Other Util. 6,304.41$ -$ -$ 5,368.38$
Sales Tax - Alc. Bev. -$ -$ -$ -$

 Vehicle Taxes -$ 608.54$ 1,224.25$ 736.10$
Zoning Fees 75.00$ 660.00$ 485.00$ 405.00$
Other -$ -$ 22.50$ 31.23$

Prepared by Rick Becker 4/28/2021 Page 1



Mineral Springs Budget Comparison 2020-21

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS

BUDGET COMPARISON 2020-2021

Advertising 1,800.00$ 1,730.35$ 69.65$ 3.9% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Attorney 9,600.00$ 6,900.00$ 2,700.00$ 28.1% 300.00$ -$ 300.00$ 300.00$ 300.00$
Audit 4,730.00$ -$ 4,730.00$ 100.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ 3,311.00$
Charities & Agencies 10,825.00$ 8,450.00$ 2,375.00$ 21.9% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Community Projects 30,800.00$ 20,705.67$ 10,094.33$ 32.8% 13.56$ 4,361.49$ 417.66$ 888.07$ 212.65$
Contingency 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ -$ 0.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Employee Overhead 32,500.00$ 7,619.57$ 24,880.43$ 76.6% 5,046.45$ 2,573.95$ 2,451.51$ 2,448.85$ 2,441.03$
Elections -$ -$ -$ 0.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Fire Protection 12,000.00$ 12,000.00$ -$ 0.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Intergovernmental 15,000.00$ 15,000.00$ -$ 0.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Office & Administrative 149,844.00$ 40,687.50$ 109,156.50$ 72.8% 24,631.68$ 9,990.84$ 10,875.37$ 11,156.92$ 9,722.33$
Planning & Zoning 48,276.00$ 20,912.70$ 27,363.30$ 56.7% 4,497.87$ 2,912.46$ 3,055.95$ 3,032.02$ 2,773.00$
Street Lighting 1,600.00$ 905.62$ 694.38$ 43.4% -$ -$ 217.38$ 79.50$ 79.50$
Tax Collection 1,900.00$ 472.19$ 1,427.81$ 75.1% 25.00$ 54.83$ 110.99$ 116.83$ 102.08$
Training 3,000.00$ 2,724.24$ 275.76$ 9.2% 75.00$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Travel 4,200.00$ 3,831.22$ 368.78$ 8.8% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Capital Outlay 22,405.00$ 19,951.00$ 2,454.00$ 11.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Tax Refunds -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Interfund Transfers -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Prepared by Rick Becker 4/28/2021 Page 1



Mineral Springs Budget Comparison 2020-21

Advertising 69.65$ -$ -$ -$
Attorney 300.00$ 300.00$ 600.00$ 300.00$
Audit -$ -$ -$ 1,419.00$
Charities & Agencies -$ -$ -$ 2,375.00$
Community Projects 1,732.90$ 1,834.90$ 212.65$ 420.45$
Contingency -$ -$ -$ -$
Employee Overhead 2,434.99$ 2,600.39$ 2,429.28$ 2,453.98$
Elections -$ -$ -$ -$
Fire Protection -$ -$ -$ -$
Intergovernmental -$ -$ -$ -$
Office & Administrative 9,637.74$ 11,177.25$ 10,396.92$ 11,567.45$
Planning & Zoning 2,773.00$ 2,773.00$ 2,773.00$ 2,773.00$
Street Lighting 79.50$ -$ 79.50$ 159.00$
Tax Collection 493.04$ 304.34$ 144.59$ 76.11$
Training -$ 200.76$ -$ -$
Travel 173.28$ -$ -$ 195.50$

Capital Outlay -$ -$ 2,454.00$ -$

Tax Refunds -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Interfund Transfers -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Prepared by Rick Becker 4/28/2021 Page 2



3/1/2021-
Category 3/31/2021

    Interest Income 626.98

    Other Inc

        Zoning 405.00

        TOTAL Other Inc 405.00

    Prop Tax 2020

        Receipts 2020

            Int 47.13

            Tax 1,784.09

            TOTAL Receipts 2020 1,831.22

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2020 1,831.22

    Prop Tax 2021

        Receipts 2021

            Prepayments 31.23

            TOTAL Receipts 2021 31.23

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2021 31.23

    Prop Tax Prior Years

        Prop Tax 2015

            Receipts 2015

                Int 1.73

                Tax 0.00

                TOTAL Receipts 2015 1.73

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2015 1.73

        Prop Tax 2018

            Receipts

                Int 0.97

                Tax 0.00

                TOTAL Receipts 0.97

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2018 0.97

        Prop Tax 2019

            Receipts 2019

                Int 2.21

                Tax 19.07

                TOTAL Receipts 2019 21.28

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2019 21.28

        TOTAL Prop Tax Prior Years 23.98

    Sales Tax

        Cable TV 4,544.51

        Electricity 48,346.41

        Natural Gas Excise 189.50

        Sales & Use Dist 2,733.71

        telecommunications 634.37

        TOTAL Sales Tax 56,448.50

    Veh Tax

        Int 2020 8.44

        Tax 2020 727.66

        TOTAL Veh Tax 736.10

March Cash Flow Report - Mar 2021
3/1/2021 through 3/31/2021

4/28/2021 Page 1



3/1/2021-
Category 3/31/2021

    Attorney 300.00

    Audit 1,419.00

    Charities & Agencies 2,375.00

    Community

        Maint 205.85

        Parks & Rec

            Park 214.60

            TOTAL Parks & Rec 214.60

        TOTAL Community 420.45

    Emp

        Benefits

            Dental 82.00

            Life 52.08

            NCLGERS 1,328.19

            Vision 14.00

            TOTAL Benefits 1,476.27

        FICA

            Med 157.58

            Soc Sec 673.63

            TOTAL FICA 831.21

        Payroll 146.50

        TOTAL Emp 2,453.98

    Office

        Clerk 3,208.00

        Council 900.00

        Deputy Clerk 1,132.74

        Equip 213.45

        Finance Officer 2,963.00

        Maint

            Service 553.00

            TOTAL Maint 553.00

        Mayor 400.00

        Supplies 334.33

        Tel 770.75

        Util 1,092.18

        TOTAL Office 11,567.45

    Planning

        Administration

            Salaries 2,773.00

            TOTAL Administration 2,773.00

        TOTAL Planning 2,773.00

    Street Lighting 159.00

    Tax Coll

        Contract 51.11

        Sal 25.00

        TOTAL Tax Coll 76.11

    Travel 195.50

March Cash Flow Report - Mar 2021
3/1/2021 through 3/31/2021

4/28/2021 Page 2



Date Num Description Memo Category Clr Amount

    3/4/2021 6055 Windstream 061348611 (FY2020) Office:Tel R -337.88

    3/4/2021 6056 Verizon Wireless 221474588-00001 (... Office:Tel R -69.14

    3/4/2021 6057 Amerigas I/N 3118160512 121... Office:Util R -423.31

    3/4/2021 6058 Taylor & Sons Mowi... I/N 015 03/21 (FY20... Office:Maint:Service R -365.00

    3/8/2021 EFT...Union County FY2020 Prop Tax 2021:Receipts 2021:Prepaym... R 31.23

FY2020 Prop Tax 2020:Receipts 2020:Tax R 1,784.09

FY2020 Prop Tax 2020:Receipts 2020:Int R 47.13

FY2020 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2019:R... R 19.07

FY2020 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2019:R... R 2.21

FY2020 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2018:R... R 0.00

FY2020 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2018:R... R 0.97

FY2020 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2015:R... R 0.00

FY2020 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2015:R... R 1.73

FY2020 Tax Coll:Contract R -28.30

    3/11/2021 EFT Debit Card (AOL) AOL Troubleshootin... Office:Tel R -7.99

    3/12/2021 EFT Debit Card (McAfee) Clerk AV software (... Office:Supplies R -85.39

    3/12/2021 EFT Debit Card (B&H Ph... Microphone Stands ... Office:Equip R -213.45

    3/15/2021 EFT...NC Department of R... FY2020 Sales Tax:Natural Gas Excise R 189.50

FY2020 Sales Tax:Electricity R 48,346.41

FY2020 Sales Tax:telecommunications R 634.37

FY2020 Sales Tax:Cable TV R 4,544.51

    3/15/2021 EFT NC Department of R... Sales & Use Distribu...Sales Tax:Sales & Use Dist R 2,733.71

    3/15/2021 6059 Duke Power 2035221941 (FY2020)Street Lighting R -79.50

    3/15/2021 6060 Bucket, Mop, And Br... I/N CTBCom-1432 j... Office:Maint:Service -188.00

    3/15/2021 6061 R.C.S., Inc. I/N  121838 Park Re... Community:Parks & Rec:Park R -200.00

    3/15/2021 6062 Clark, Griffin & McC... I/N 7542 3/2021 (FY... Attorney R -300.00

    3/15/2021 6063 Xerox Corporation I/N 012719881 (FY2... Office:Supplies R -102.69

    3/15/2021 6064 Amerigas I/N 3118984940 123... Office:Util R -470.35

    3/15/2021 6065 Union County Public... 84361*00 (FY2020) Office:Util R -38.21

    3/15/2021 6066 Union County Public... 91052*00 (FY2020) Community:Parks & Rec:Park R -14.60

    3/15/2021 6067 Frederick Becker III 11/20 - 12/20 reimb... Travel R -195.50

    3/15/2021 6068 Quadient Finance U... 7900 0440 3484 247...Office:Supplies R -146.25

    3/15/2021 6069 Kendra Gangal CPA... I/N 1481 Audit Pmt ... Audit R -1,419.00

    3/15/2021 6070 Charlotte Steeplech... Charitable Contributi... Charities & Agencies R -2,375.00

    3/15/2021 EFT Point And Pay 05033053 (FY2020)` Other Inc:Zoning R 25.00

    3/22/2021 EFT...Union County {NCV... NCVTS 2102 (FY20... Veh Tax:Tax 2020 R 727.66

NCVTS Refunds (F... Veh Tax:Tax 2020 R 0.00

NCVTS 2102 (FY20... Veh Tax:Int 2020 R 8.44

FY2020 Tax Coll:Contract R -22.81

    3/23/2021 EFT Point And Pay 06060073 (FY2020)` Other Inc:Zoning R 50.00

    3/23/2021 6071 Duke Power 1819573779 (Old Sc...Office:Util R -25.07

    3/23/2021 6072 Duke Power 1803784140 (FY2020)Office:Util R -135.24

    3/23/2021 6073 Duke Power 2035221941 (FY2020)Street Lighting R -79.50

    3/23/2021 6074 Duke Power 1618851260 (Christ... Community:Maint R -205.85

    3/23/2021 6075 Windstream 061348611 (FY2020) Office:Tel R -355.74

    3/23/2021 607... Municipal Insurance ...3/21 (FY2020) Emp:Benefits:Life R -52.08

3/21 (FY2020) Emp:Benefits:Dental R -82.00

3/21 (FY2020) Emp:Benefits:Vision R -14.00

    3/29/2021 EFT...NC State Treasurer 03/21 LGERS contri... Office:Clerk R -192.48

03/21 LGERS contri... Office:Finance Officer R -177.78

03/21 LGERS contri... Planning:Administration:Salaries R -166.38

Register Report - Mar 2021
3/1/2021 through 3/31/2021

5/2/2021 Page 1



Date Num Description Memo Category Clr Amount

03/21 employer cont... Emp:Benefits:NCLGERS R -1,328.19

    3/29/2021 DEP Deposit #20015 #20015 Zoning (FY2... Other Inc:Zoning R 330.00

    3/30/2021 EFT...Paychex Salary 03/21 (FY202...Office:Clerk R -3,015.52

Supplement 03/21 (... Office:Clerk R 0.00

03/21 (FY2020) Office:Deputy Clerk R -1,132.74

Salary 03/21 (FY202...Office:Finance Officer R -2,785.22

Salary 03/21 (FY202...Office:Mayor R -400.00

Salary 03/21 (FY202...Office:Council R -900.00

Salary 03/21 (FY202...Planning:Administration:Salaries R -2,606.62

Salary 03/21 (FY202...Tax Coll:Sal R -25.00

FY2020 Emp:FICA:Soc Sec R -673.63

FY2020 Emp:FICA:Med R -157.58

    3/31/2021 EFT Paychex Fees Fees 03/21 (FY2020) Emp:Payroll R -146.50

Register Report - Mar 2021
3/1/2021 through 3/31/2021

5/2/2021 Page 2











2,453,253.10 1,631,801.14 1,301,881.71 - (47.13) 309,221.75 - - (391,868.46) 5,304,242.11
FAIRVIEW 1,079.00 717.70 572.60 - (0.02) 136.00 - - 726.64 3,231.92

HEMBY BRIDGE - - - - - - - - - -
INDIAN TRAIL 90,917.34 60,474.41 48,247.62 - (1.75) 11,459.73 - - 61,226.61 272,323.96

LAKE PARK 8,275.04 5,504.21 4,391.36 - (0.16) 1,043.03 - - 5,572.67 24,786.15
MARSHVILLE 12,281.74 8,169.30 6,517.62 - (0.24) 1,548.06 - - 8,270.91 36,787.39

MARVIN 7,426.41 4,939.74 3,941.01 - (0.14) 936.07 - - 5,001.18 22,244.27
MINERAL SPRINGS 912.67 607.07 484.33 - (0.02) 115.04 - - 614.62 2,733.71

MINT HILL * 51.60 34.32 27.38 - - 6.50 - - 34.75 154.55
MONROE 289,134.86 192,320.39 153,436.83 - (5.55) 36,444.17 - - 194,712.53 866,043.23

STALLINGS * 48,244.94 32,090.51 25,602.42 - (0.93) 6,081.06 - - 32,489.67 144,507.67
UNIONVILLE 1,468.71 976.92 779.41 - (0.03) 185.12 - - 989.08 4,399.21

WAXHAW 96,970.04 64,500.41 51,459.64 - (1.86) 12,222.65 - - 65,302.69 290,453.57
WEDDINGTON * 15,084.70 10,033.71 8,005.08 - (0.29) 1,901.36 - - 10,158.51 45,183.07

WESLEY CHAPEL 2,158.60 1,435.81 1,145.52 - (0.04) 272.08 - - 1,453.67 6,465.64
WINGATE 7,892.30 5,249.63 4,188.25 - (0.15) 994.79 - - 5,314.93 23,639.75

3,035,151.05 2,018,855.27 1,610,680.78 - (58.31) 382,567.41 - - - 7,047,196.20

Page 1 of 1

NC Sales & Use Distribution



County of Union -$ -$ -$ 110,459.10$ 110,459.10$

Town of Fairview 348.01$ 24,415.50$ 4,554.57$ 1,773.35$ 31,091.43$

Town of Hemby Bridge 268.50$ 9,174.27$ 1,926.43$ 3,148.30$ 14,517.50$

Town of Indian Trail 18,915.27$ 255,256.73$ 11,001.44$ 66,235.76$ 351,409.20$

Town of Lake Park 2,595.04$ 20,141.95$ 369.11$ 4,327.07$ 27,433.17$

Town of Marshville -$ 39,826.33$ 4,974.10$ 2,448.88$ 47,249.31$

Town of Marvin 3,148.05$ 35,752.78$ 8,679.06$ 15,514.21$ 63,094.10$

Town of Mineral Springs 189.50$ 48,346.41$ 634.37$ 4,544.51$ 53,714.79$

City of Monroe 32,064.46$ 631,533.85$ 51,755.33$ 46,311.14$ 761,664.78$

Town of Stallings 7,979.61$ 135,390.29$ 1,214.21$ 38,338.43$ 182,922.54$

Town of Unionville 291.50$ 35,061.86$ 8,421.72$ 6,167.16$ 49,942.24$

Town of Waxhaw 5,848.08$ 132,544.10$ 10,203.94$ 43,533.54$ 192,129.66$

Town of Weddington 4,611.57$ 75,665.10$ 1,097.37$ 21,142.51$ 102,516.55$

Village of Wesley Chapel 3,569.55$ 40,704.41$ 1,216.37$ 21,686.95$ 67,177.28$

Town of Wingate -$ 25,218.14$ 4,106.93$ 4,811.70$ 34,136.77$



NCVT15

Jurisdiction Entitiy Vendor # Inv #
 Tax & Fee 

Amt 
 Int Only

Amt 
 Cmn
Cst 

 Pending 
Refunds 

Net
Amt Status/Check#

001 Union County 0 526,067.64$                    4,755.76$      (16,024.50)$           ($152.93) 514,645.97$          No Check

003 Voter Approved Debt Tax 0 80,259.92                         723.72             (2,444.85)                ($23.33) 78,515.46$             No Check

011 Countywide Fire Tax 0 37,732.04                         325.62             (1,148.90)                ($11.02) 36,897.74$             No Check

012 Countywide EMS Taz 0 51,274.84                         477.76             (1,562.34)                ($14.85) 50,175.41$             No Check

013 Griffith Rd 0 801.80                               7.16                  (22.20)                      $0.00 786.76$                   No Check

014 Stack Rd 0 1,240.82                            7.96                  (31.61)                      $0.00 1,217.17$               No Check

015 Springs Fire Tax 0 5,573.03                            59.83               (172.22)                    $6.48 5,467.12$               No Check

016 Fairview 0 2,617.56                            19.14               (78.64)                      $0.00 2,558.06$               No Check

017 New Salem 0 3,640.32                            23.67               (102.70)                    $0.00 3,561.29$               No Check

018 Beaver Lane 0 3,148.39                            26.69               (87.15)                      $57.47 3,145.40$               No Check

019 Bakers 0 6,626.58                            59.08               (199.96)                    $31.59 6,517.29$               No Check

020 Stallings Fire Tax 0 11,516.10                         116.98             (360.68)                    $38.11 11,310.51$             No Check

021 Unionville 0 4,916.83                            30.67               (138.31)                    $14.58 4,823.77$               No Check

022 Wingate 0 3,296.33                            22.15               (82.75)                      $0.00 3,235.73$               No Check

023 Hemby Bridge Fire Tax 0 14,437.97                         141.21             (448.45)                    $178.54 14,309.27$             No Check

024 Allens Crossroads 0 317.82                               0.93                  (9.46)                        $0.00 309.29$                   No Check

025 Jackson 0 1,235.58                            6.83                  (36.92)                      $0.00 1,205.49$               No Check

026 Wesley Chapel Fire Tax 0 17,516.28                         126.58             (570.59)                    $32.23 17,104.50$             No Check

027 Lanes Creek 0 1,429.91                            9.63                  (37.98)                      $0.00 1,401.56$               No Check

028 Waxhaw Fire Tax 0 12,801.01                         110.10             (415.50)                    $7.22 12,502.83$             No Check

029 Sandy Ridge 0 1,681.16                            4.73                  (43.13)                      $0.00 1,642.76$               No Check

030 Providence 0 130.77                               1.49                  (4.72)                        $0.00 127.54$                   No Check

101 Village of Marvin 1832 VTFNAP2101-1 5,169.62                            29.76               (169.04)                    $0.00 5,030.34$               

200 City of Monroe 103-7 VTFNAP2101-1 235,606.31                       1,710.21          (6,268.52)                ($5,690.33) 225,357.67$           

222 Monroe Downtown Service District103-7 VTFNAP2101-2 75.91                                 -                    (2.33)                        -                            73.58$                     

300 Town of Wingate 4064 VTFNAP2101-1 11,494.50                         65.45               (284.20)                    $0.00 11,275.75$             

400 Town of Marshville 5861 VTFNAP2101-1 8,691.03                            97.90               (201.63)                    $0.00 8,587.30$               

500 Town of Waxhaw 8268 VTFNAP2101-1 103,869.29                       653.76             (3,393.79)                $0.00 101,129.26$           

600 Town of Indian Trail 2924 VTFNAP2101-1 71,185.73                         777.23             (2,201.02)                $916.95 70,678.89$             

700 Town of Stallings 4860-2 VTFNAP2101-1 34,447.79                         319.22             (1,091.97)                $0.00 33,675.04$             

800 Town of Weddington 7518 VTFNAP2101-1 10,397.16                         80.18               (339.80)                    ($7.89) 10,129.65$             

900 Village of Lake Park 1833 VTFNAP2101-1 6,871.11                            64.12               (216.67)                    $0.00 6,718.56$               

930 Town of Fairview 19458 VTFNAP2101-1 929.41                               10.20               (28.35)                      $0.00 911.26$                   

970 Village of Wesley Chapel 9262 VTFNAP2101-1 1,717.88                            10.77               (55.87)                      $13.57 1,686.35$               

980 Town of Unionville 11530 VTFNAP2101-1 1,607.44                            11.79               (46.24)                      $13.07 1,586.06$               

990 Town of Mineral Springs 10870 VTFNAP2101-1 727.66                               8.44                  (22.81)                      $0.00 713.29$                   

999 Schools 0 1,082,463.65                    9,770.67          (32,975.53)              ($314.60) 1,058,944.19$       No Check

Total 2,363,517.19$                20,667.39$    (71,321.33)$           ($4,905.14) 2,307,958.11$      

AP Total 477,553.00$          

For the month Ending: 01/31/2021
NCVTS A/P Receipt Distribution

990 Town of Mineral Springs 10870 VTFNAP2101-1 727.66                              8.44                 (22.81)                     $0.00 713.29$                  





UNION COUNTY CRITICAL INTERSECTION ANALYSIS PHASE II, 
Public Comment Summary, March 8 – April 4, 2021 
 

Page 2 of 5 

NC 75 (Waxhaw Hwy) and Potter Road, Mineral Springs.  79 total responses 

  

ALTERNATIVE 1 (TURN LANE IMPROVEMENTS) ALTERNATIVE 2 (ROUNDABOUT) 

 

L
ik

e
s 

- Lower cost 

- Fewer impacts to businesses 

- Improves safety 

- Better traffic flow 

D
is

li
k

e
s 

- Will cause traffic backups, particularly on 

railroad tracks 

- Less effective at reducing accidents 

- Incompatible with downtown (overdesign for the area) 

- Confusing to drivers 

- Impacts to businesses 

- Challenging for pedestrians and cyclists 

- Too expensive 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 - Only issues at peak periods 

- Concerns regarding the cost, impacts, and time to construct roundabout 

  

4

28

13

8

14

2

8

1 1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

In
d

ia
n

 T
ra

il

M
in

e
ra

l 
S

p
ri

n
g

s

M
o

n
ro

e

U
n

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d

U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty

W
a

xh
a

w

W
e

d
d

in
g

to
n

W
e

sl
e

y
 C

h
a

p
e

l

W
in

g
a

te

U
n

io
n

v
il

le

Where do you live?

44

30

3 2

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

A
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 1

A
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 2

N
e

it
h

e
r

N
o

 P
re

fe
re

n
ce

Preferred Alternative



U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

ri
ti

c
a
l 

In
te

rs
e
c
ti

o
n

 A
n

a
ly

si
s 

P
h

a
se

 I
I 

P
u

b
li

c
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

, 
M

a
rc

h
 8

 -
 A

p
ri

l 
2

, 
2

0
2

1

N
C

 7
5

 a
n

d
 P

o
tt

e
r 

R
d

, 
M

in
e
ra

l 
S

p
ri

n
g

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

D
a
te

W
h

e
re

 d
o

 y
o

u
 

li
v

e
?

H
o

w
 l

o
n

g
 h

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 l
iv

e
d

 

in
 U

n
io

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

?

P
le

a
se

 s
e

le
c
t 

y
o

u
r

 a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
.

P
le

a
se

 s
e

le
c
t 

y
o

u
r 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

.
P

le
a
se

 e
x

p
la

in
 w

h
y
 y

o
u

 p
re

fe
r 

th
is

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

.
P

le
a
se

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
y
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts

 o
r 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s 

a
t 

th
is

 i
n

te
rs

e
c
ti

o
n

.

3
/6

/2
02

1
M

in
er

al
 S

p
ri

n
gs

11
_t

o
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

5
0_

to
_5

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2
Tr

af
fi

c 
lig

h
t 

is
 u

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

 m
o

st
 o

f 
th

e 
d

ay
 (

6
P

M
 t

o
 7

A
M

).
  Y

o
u

 w
o

n
't

 h
av

e 
to

 w
ai

t 
at

 a
 r

ed
 li

gh
t 

if
 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o

 t
ra

ff
ic

 if
 y

o
u

 h
av

e 
a 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t.

  T
h

e 
re

ce
n

tl
y 

b
u

ild
 r

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

at
 7

5 
an

d
 r

o
ck

y 
ri

ve
r 

is
 

w
o

rk
in

g 
q

u
it

e 
w

el
l.

3
/8

/2
02

1
M

in
er

al
 S

p
ri

n
gs

5_
to

_1
0_

ye
ar

s
3

0_
to

_3
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

I w
o

u
ld

 p
re

fe
r 

n
ei

th
er

 a
lt

er
n

at
iv

s 
as

 b
o

th
 I 

fe
e

l w
ill

 n
eg

at
iv

el
y 

im
p

ac
t 

b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
th

at
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

ex
is

t 
in

 

th
at

 a
re

a 
b

u
t 

I u
n

d
er

st
an

d
 t

h
at

 is
 n

o
t 

fe
as

ib
le

 d
u

e 
to

 t
h

e 
u

n
co

n
tr

o
lle

d
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 t
h

er
ef

o
re

 in
cr

ea
se

 

in
 t

ra
ff

ic
 t

h
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 a

llo
w

ed
 in

 W
ax

h
aw

 a
n

d
 U

n
io

n
 c

o
u

n
ty

 o
ve

ra
ll.

H
o

w
ev

er
, g

iv
en

 t
h

e 
2

 c
h

o
ic

es
, t

h
e 

o
n

ly
 f

ea
si

b
le

 o
p

ti
o

n
 is

 #
1

.  
W

it
h

 o
p

ti
o

n
 2

 y
o

u
 w

o
u

ld
 h

av
e 

b
ac

ku
p

s 

o
n

to
 7

5
 d

u
ri

n
g 

tr
ai

n
 c

ro
ss

in
gs

 w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 im
p

ac
t 

al
l 4

 d
ir

ec
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
tr

av
el

.  
A

ls
o

 it
 w

o
u

ld
 t

ak
e 

a 
h

u
ge

 

ch
u

n
k 

o
f 

re
al

 e
st

at
e,

 a
lr

ea
d

y 
h

em
m

ed
 in

 b
y 

th
e 

ra
ilr

o
ad

, d
es

tr
o

y 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

b
u

si
n

es
se

s,
 r

em
o

ve
 t

h
e 

fe
e

l 

o
f 

o
u

r 
d

o
w

n
to

w
n

 a
re

a,
 a

n
d

 t
ak

e 
m

u
ch

 lo
n

ge
r 

ti
m

e 
to

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 g
iv

en
 p

as
t 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

in
st

al
l 

at
 r

o
ck

y 
ri

ve
r 

rd
.

Th
e 

o
n

ly
 o

p
ti

o
n

 is
 #

1
, u

n
le

ss
 s

o
m

et
h

in
g 

is
 d

o
n

e 
to

 r
ei

gn
 in

 t
h

is
 in

sa
n

e 
p

ac
e 

o
f 

ex
p

an
si

o
n

, i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 

ca
se

 n
ei

th
er

 n
ee

d
s 

to
 b

e 
d

o
n

e.

A
 r

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

a 
gr

av
e 

m
is

ta
ke

 in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a,
 a

s 
it

 

w
o

u
ld

 d
es

tr
o

y 
o

u
r 

d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 a

n
d

 m
as

si
ve

ly
 im

p
ac

t 

co
m

m
u

te
s 

d
u

ri
n

g 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

, n
ev

er
m

in
d

 c
o

at
in

g 
ta

xp
ay

er
s 

tw
ic

e 
th

e 
am

o
u

n
t

3
/9

/2
02

1
M

in
er

al
 S

p
ri

n
gs

m
o

re
_

th
an

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
6

0
+

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

It
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
sa

fe
r,

 lo
o

k 
b

et
te

r 
an

d
 t

ak
e 

d
o

w
n

 t
w

o
 e

ye
 s

o
ar

s.
 T

h
e 

o
th

er
 t

re
e

 b
u

ild
in

gs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 g
o

 a
t 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ti

m
e.

 I 
kn

o
w

 it
 w

ill
 c

o
st

 t
w

ic
e 

as
 m

u
ch

. B
u

t 
th

e 
tu

rn
 la

n
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 o
n

ly
 p

ro
lo

n
g 

th
e 

p
ro

b
le

m
 

an
d

 it
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 b

e 
ad

d
re

ss
e

d
 in

 t
h

e 
fu

tu
re

 a
t 

a 
m

u
ch

 h
ig

h
er

 p
ri

ce
.

3
/9

/2
02

1
M

o
n

ro
e

m
o

re
_

th
an

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
4

0_
to

_4
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

Im
p

ro
ve

s 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ga

s 
st

at
io

n
 

3
/1

0/
20

2
1

W
e

sl
ey

 C
h

ap
el

5_
to

_1
0_

ye
ar

s
4

0_
to

_4
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

I d
o

n
’t

 s
e

e 
h

o
w

 a
 r

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

w
o

u
ld

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ra

ilr
o

ad
 t

ra
ck

s 
so

 c
lo

se
 b

y.
  T

ra
ff

ic
 w

o
u

ld
 b

ac
k 

u
p

 

in
to

 t
h

e 
ro

u
n

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
h

en
 a

 t
ra

in
 c

o
m

es
 t

h
ro

u
gh

, w
h

ic
h

 is
 s

o
m

ew
h

at
 f

re
q

u
en

tl
y.

  A
ls

o
, t

h
er

e 
is

 a
 

ch
u

rc
h

/p
re

sc
h

o
o

l r
ig

h
t 

b
eh

in
d

 O
ld

 W
ax

h
aw

-M
o

n
ro

e 
R

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 c

o
u

ld
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
tl

y 
im

p
ac

t 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 

to
 t

u
rn

 in
/o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ch
u

rc
h

.  
La

st
ly

, t
h

er
e 

ar
e 

to
o

 m
an

y 
ro

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
 in

 t
h

is
 c

o
u

n
ty

!!
  

3
/1

0/
20

2
1

W
ax

h
aw

le
ss

_
th

an
_5

_y
ea

rs
3

0_
to

_3
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 s

af
et

y 
w

it
h

 n
ea

r 
co

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s 
tr

af
fi

c 
fl

o
w

3
/1

0/
20

2
1

W
ax

h
aw

le
ss

_
th

an
_5

_y
ea

rs
4

0_
to

_4
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

Sa
fe

r,
 b

et
te

r 
tr

af
fi

c 
fl

o
w

3
/1

0/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

4
0_

to
_4

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
Tu

rn
 la

n
es

 a
re

 w
el

l p
as

t 
d

u
e 

b
ei

n
g 

n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
th

is
 in

te
rs

e
ct

io
n

.  
Tr

af
fi

c 
is

 o
n

ly
 h

ea
vy

 @
 c

er
ta

in
 t

im
es

 

an
d

 t
h

e 
tu

rn
 la

n
es

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

m
o

re
 h

el
p

fu
l. 

 T
h

is
 is

 a
 v

er
y 

sm
al

l a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
ac

t 
ar

ea
 a

n
d

 a
 r

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

is
n

't
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 r
ig

h
t 

n
o

w
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 t
ak

e 
u

p
 t

o
o

 m
u

ch
 r

o
o

m
.

A
ls

o
, t

h
e 

lig
h

ts
 d

o
n

't
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 b
e 

o
n

 t
im

er
s 

as
 it

 s
e

em
s 

lik
e 

th
ey

 

ar
e.

  Y
o

u
 c

an
 s

it
 @

 t
h

e 
re

d
 li

gh
t 

o
n

 P
o

tt
er

 f
o

r 
a 

w
h

ile
 a

n
d

 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
0 

ca
rs

 c
o

m
in

g 
d

o
w

n
 7

5.
  I

t 
n

ee
d

s 
to

 b
e 

ch
an

ge
d

 t
o

 

se
n

so
rs

 t
o

 a
d

ju
st

 p
at

te
rn

s 
so

 c
ar

s 
ar

en
't

 s
it

ti
n

g 
@

 t
h

e 

in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 f

o
r 

an
 e

xt
en

d
ed

 le
n

gt
h

 o
f 

ti
m

e 
fo

r 
n

o
th

in
g.

3
/1

0/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
11

_t
o

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
6

0
+

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

I l
iv

e 
le

ss
 a

b
o

u
t 

4
 m

ile
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
is

 in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
.  

I d
o

n
't

 s
e

e 
th

at
 a

 r
o

u
n

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
.  

Se
e

m
s 

lik
e 

o
ve

rk
ill

.  
I g

o
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h

at
 in

te
rs

e
ct

io
n

 a
ll 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
an

d
 t

o
 b

e 
h

o
n

es
t,

 I 
d

o
n

't
 t

h
in

k 
an

yt
h

in
g 

n
ew

 is
 

n
ee

d
ed

 b
u

t 
if

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

to
 d

o
 s

o
m

et
h

in
g,

 le
ss

 is
 b

es
t.

  G
o

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

tu
rn

 la
n

e.
 

I d
o

n
't

 h
av

e 
an

y 
co

n
ce

rn
s 

ab
o

u
t 

th
is

 in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 w
as

 

su
rp

ri
se

d
 t

o
 s

e
e 

th
at

 a
n

y 
ch

an
ge

 is
 b

ei
n

g 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
.  

W
as

te
 

o
f 

m
o

n
ey

.

3
/1

0/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

6
0

+
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
I'm

 n
o

t 
a 

fa
n

 o
f 

a 
ro

u
n

d
ab

o
u

t 
in

 a
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

a 
to

w
n

, a
lt

h
o

u
gh

 M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
 is

 a
 v

er
y 

sm
al

l 

to
w

n
. I

 t
ra

ve
l t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h

is
 in

te
rs

e
ct

io
n

 o
ft

en
 a

n
d

 t
h

er
e 

is
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

d
el

ay
 w

h
en

 t
u

rn
in

g 
le

ft
 o

ff
 

P
o

tt
er

 f
ro

m
 e

it
h

er
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 o

n
to

 H
w

y.
 7

5
 d

u
e 

to
 o

n
co

m
in

g 
tr

af
fi

c.
 

I'm
 a

ss
u

m
in

g 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

le
ft

 t
u

rn
 s

ig
n

al
s 

(g
re

e
n

 a
rr

o
w

s)
 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

tr
af

fi
c 

lig
h

t 
.

3
/1

1/
20

2
1

U
n

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty

11
_t

o
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

5
0_

to
_5

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
C

o
st

 a
n

d
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 r

ed
u

ce
s 

th
e 

b
ig

ge
st

 is
su

es
 a

n
d

 h
as

 le
as

t 
im

p
ac

t 
o

n
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

st
ru

gg
lin

g 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s.

3
/1

1/
20

2
1

W
e

d
d

in
gt

o
n

11
_t

o
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

5
0_

to
_5

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
I t

h
in

k 
a 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

d
an

ge
ro

u
s 

h
er

e.
  W

it
h

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
th

e 
lig

h
t 

an
d

 

in
cr

ea
si

n
g 

tu
rn

in
g 

la
n

es
 w

o
u

ld
 w

o
rk

 b
et

te
r.

3
/1

1/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

6
0

+
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2
Th

is
 w

ill
 k

ee
p

 t
h

e 
tr

af
fi

c 
m

o
vi

n
g.

3
/1

2/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
11

_t
o

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
6

0
+

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

B
ec

au
se

 o
f 

co
st

 a
n

d
 b

ec
au

se
 t

h
e 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

is
 t

o
o

 c
o

m
p

le
x;

 m
an

y 
p

eo
p

le
 d

o
 n

o
t 

kn
o

w
 

h
o

w
 t

o
 p

ro
ce

e
d

 in
 a

 r
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

t

R
ig

h
t 

n
o

w
  t

h
is

 in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 is

 s
lo

w
 o

n
ly

 a
t 

ce
rt

ai
n

 t
im

es
: 

m
o

rn
in

g 
s



U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

ri
ti

c
a
l 

In
te

rs
e
c
ti

o
n

 A
n

a
ly

si
s 

P
h

a
se

 I
I 

P
u

b
li

c
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

, 
M

a
rc

h
 8

 -
 A

p
ri

l 
2

, 
2

0
2

1

N
C

 7
5

 a
n

d
 P

o
tt

e
r 

R
d

, 
M

in
e
ra

l 
S

p
ri

n
g

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

D
a
te

W
h

e
re

 d
o

 y
o

u
 

li
v

e
?

H
o

w
 l

o
n

g
 h

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 l
iv

e
d

 

in
 U

n
io

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

?

P
le

a
se

 s
e

le
c
t 

y
o

u
r

 a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
.

P
le

a
se

 s
e

le
c
t 

y
o

u
r 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

.
P

le
a
se

 e
x

p
la

in
 w

h
y
 y

o
u

 p
re

fe
r 

th
is

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

.
P

le
a
se

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
y
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts

 o
r 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s 

a
t 

th
is

 i
n

te
rs

e
c
ti

o
n

.

3
/1

2/
20

2
1

U
n

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty

11
_t

o
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

6
0

+
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
R

o
u

n
d

 a
b

o
u

ts
 d

o
n

't
 s

e
em

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 a

s 
w

el
l i

n
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

si
n

ce
 m

an
y 

d
ri

ve
rs

 a
re

 n
o

t 
fa

m
ili

ar
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
id

ea
 

an
d

 h
es

it
at

e 
w

h
en

 e
n

te
ri

n
g.

 It
 a

ls
o

 s
e

em
s 

th
at

 t
h

e 
tr

af
fi

c 
p

at
te

rn
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ro
u

n
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
o

p
ti

o
n

 is
 m

o
re

 

co
m

p
le

x.
 F

o
r 

ex
am

p
le

, a
 p

er
so

n
 c

an
't

 t
u

rn
 le

ft
 f

ro
m

 O
ld

 W
ax

h
aw

-M
o

n
ro

e 
R

d
, s

o
 t

h
ey

 w
o

u
ld

 in
st

ea
d

 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 g

o
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h

e 
ro

u
n

d
 a

b
o

u
t.

 I 
d

o
n

't
 t

h
in

k 
it

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

ea
sy

 f
o

r 
p

eo
p

le
 t

o
 r

ea
liz

e 
th

is
 t

h
e 

fi
rs

t 

ti
m

e 
th

ey
 c

o
m

e 
to

 t
h

e 
in

te
rs

e
ct

io
n

.

So
 t

h
e 

tu
rn

 la
n

e 
o

p
ti

o
n

 s
e

em
s 

ea
si

er
 t

o
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

 a
n

d
 it

 is
 le

ss
 e

xp
en

si
ve

.

Si
n

gl
e 

la
n

e 
ro

u
n

d
 a

b
o

u
ts

 in
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 s
e

em
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 r
ea

so
n

ab
ly

 

w
el

l, 
b

u
t 

m
u

lt
ip

le
 la

n
e 

ro
u

n
d

 a
b

o
u

ts
 c

au
se

 c
o

n
fu

si
o

n
 a

s 

d
ri

ve
rs

 d
ec

id
e 

h
o

w
 t

o
 g

o
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 it
. I

'v
e 

se
en

 d
ri

ve
rs

 m
ak

e 

m
is

ta
ke

s 
at

 t
h

e 
n

ew
 r

o
u

n
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
at

 W
e

d
d

in
gt

o
n

 R
d

 a
n

d
 

C
h

es
tn

u
t,

 b
u

t 
th

e 
tr

af
fi

c 
is

 li
gh

t 
en

o
u

gh
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

ti
m

es
 I'

ve
 

b
ee

n
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 it
 t

h
at

 it
 w

as
n

't
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
. I

 t
h

in
k 

75
 a

n
d

 P
o

tt
er

 

w
ill

 b
e 

h
ig

h
er

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

fu
si

o
n

 m
o

re
 o

f 
a 

p
ro

b
le

m
.

3
/1

2/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
5_

to
_1

0_
ye

ar
s

4
0_

to
_4

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
I r

ea
lly

 d
o

n
’t

 li
ke

 e
it

h
er

 in
 t

h
e 

se
n

se
 o

f 
lo

o
si

n
g 

o
u

r 
b

ar
b

er
 s

h
o

p
. D

u
st

y 
is

 a
 s

ta
p

le
 t

o
 o

u
r 

to
w

n
. I

 a
ls

o
 

re
al

iz
e 

w
h

at
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 d
o

 f
o

r 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 t
im

e 
to

 c
re

at
e.

 I 
liv

e 
n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
tr

ac
ks

 a
n

d
 d

ri
ve

 o
ve

r 
th

em
 

d
ai

ly
. W

it
h

 n
o

 c
lo

se
 a

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

it
 a

d
d

s 
a 

lo
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e 
to

 m
y 

co
m

m
u

te
 t

o
 g

et
 t

o
 w

o
rk

. B
ef

o
re

 y
o

u
 d

o
 

an
yt

h
in

g 
th

er
e.

 Y
o

u
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 c
re

at
e 

so
m

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 g
et

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 t

o
w

n
. T

h
at

 in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 is

 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
b

u
sy

 s
o

 t
o

 f
o

rc
e 

u
s 

al
l t

o
 d

ri
ve

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 t

o
 m

o
st

 w
ax

h
aw

 c
au

se
 a

 lo
t 

o
f 

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

el
se

w
h

er
e.

 T
h

at
 is

 h
o

w
 y

o
u

 p
la

n
 b

es
t.

 Y
o

u
 c

an
t 

d
o

 s
u

rg
er

y 
o

n
 a

 m
ai

n
 a

rt
er

y 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
an

 a
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 

o
p

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

b
lo

o
d

 t
o

 f
lo

w
. O

r 
yo

u
 lo

o
se

 t
h

e 
p

at
ie

n
t 

in
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 

3
/1

2/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

6
0

+
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
I t

h
in

k 
th

at
 t

ra
ff

ic
 s

ig
n

al
s 

ar
e 

ac
tu

al
ly

 s
af

er
 t

h
an

 r
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
, a

n
d

 m
y 

re
as

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

a 
is

 t
h

at
 n

o
 o

n
e 

se
em

s 
to

 k
n

o
w

 h
o

w
 t

o
 c

o
rr

ec
tl

y 
u

se
 o

n
e.

 A
ls

o
 if

 t
h

e 
b

u
ild

in
g 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

B
ar

b
er

 S
h

o
p

 is
 g

o
in

g 
to

 b
e 

d
es

tr
o

ye
d

 f
o

r 
ei

th
er

 o
n

e 
o

f 
th

es
e 

p
ro

je
ct

s,
 t

h
e 

st
at

e 
sh

o
u

ld
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

o
w

n
er

 t
o

 m
o

ve
 

h
is

 b
u

si
n

es
s,

 t
o

 a
n

o
th

er
 s

it
e,

  p
re

fe
ra

b
ly

  i
n

to
 t

h
e 

ex
si

st
in

g 
st

ri
p

 m
al

l a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e 
st

re
e

t 
fr

o
m

 w
h

er
e 

h
e 

is
 n

o
w

.

3
/1

2/
20

2
1

W
in

ga
te

5_
to

_1
0_

ye
ar

s
4

0_
to

_4
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

A
s 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
ts

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
to

 b
e 

b
u

ilt
 m

an
y 

p
eo

p
le

 in
 t

h
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
d

o
n

’t
 y

ie
ld

 o
r 

d
o

n
’t

 u
n

d
er

st
an

d
 

(e
ve

n
 w

it
h

 g
iv

en
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 D
M

V
) 

h
o

w
 t

o
 d

ri
ve

 in
 t

h
e 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t.

 A
 t

u
rn

 s
ig

n
al

 w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

vi
d

e 

th
e 

in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 a
 s

af
er

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

 u
n

d
er

st
an

d
ab

le
 t

ra
ff

ic
 p

at
te

rn
. 

3
/1

2/
20

2
1

W
e

sl
ey

 C
h

ap
el

le
ss

_
th

an
_5

_y
ea

rs
6

0
+

N
o

 P
re

fe
re

n
ce

Sa
fe

st
 a

n
d

 lo
n

g 
te

rm
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
.

3
/1

2/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

6
0

+
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2
In

 t
h

e 
lo

n
g 

ru
n

 it
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
st

 le
ss

 a
n

d
 m

o
ve

 t
ra

ff
ic

 b
et

te
r.

 It
 w

o
u

ld
 e

lim
in

at
e 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f 

el
ec

tr
ic

it
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

lig
h

ts
, w

o
rk

 w
h

en
 t

h
e 

p
o

w
er

 is
 o

u
t 

an
d

 h
av

e 
le

ss
 n

ee
d

 f
o

r 
m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

. 

It
 n

ee
d

s 
to

 b
e 

d
o

n
e 

as
 s

o
o

n
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

. D
o

 n
o

t 
w

ai
t 

lik
e 

yo
u

 

h
av

e 
d

o
n

e 
w

it
h

 J
o

h
n

s 
St

re
e

t 
in

 M
at

th
ew

s.
 T

h
at

 r
o

ad
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 

o
b

so
le

te
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 3
0 

ye
ar

s 
an

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 

w
id

en
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

19
90

's
   

3
/1

2/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
11

_t
o

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
6

0
+

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

Tu
rn

 la
n

es
 a

re
 u

n
d

er
st

o
o

d
 b

y 
m

o
st

 d
ri

ve
rs

. R
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t.

3
/1

3/
20

2
1

U
n

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty

m
o

re
_

th
an

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
6

0
+

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

Sm
o

o
th

er
 f

as
te

r 
tr

af
fi

c.

3
/1

3/
20

2
1

W
ax

h
aw

m
o

re
_

th
an

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
4

0_
to

_4
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

It
 k

ee
p

s 
tr

af
fi

c 
fl

o
w

in
g 

an
d

 r
ed

u
ce

s 
re

d
 li

gh
t/

cr
o

ss
in

g 
tr

af
fi

c 
 a

cc
id

en
ts

3
/1

3/
20

2
1

W
e

sl
ey

 C
h

ap
el

11
_t

o
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

4
0_

to
_4

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2
I f

in
d

 t
h

at
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

ir
cl

es
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

ra
ff

ic
 f

lo
w

 m
u

ch
 m

o
re

 s
o

 t
h

an
 a

 t
ra

ff
ic

 s
ig

n
al

.

3
/1

3/
20

2
1

W
e

sl
ey

 C
h

ap
el

5_
to

_1
0_

ye
ar

s
4

0_
to

_4
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

R
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
 a

re
 f

ar
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t.

 W
h

ile
 t

h
ey

 h
av

e 
a 

h
ig

h
er

 in
it

ia
l c

o
st

, t
h

e 
m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e 

m
u

ch
 lo

w
er

 o
ve

r 
ti

m
e.

 

3
/1

3/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

4
0_

to
_4

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
W

e
 p

re
fe

r 
th

e 
tu

rn
 la

n
e 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 b
o

th
 7

5
 a

n
d

 P
o

tt
er

s 
rd

 (
 a

ll 
si

d
es

 o
f 

th
e 

in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
).

 T
h

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 

co
st

 le
ss

, t
h

e 
en

ti
re

 r
o

ad
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

h
av

e 
to

 b
e 

sh
u

t 
d

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 d
et

o
u

rs
 a

ll 
o

ve
r 

th
e 

p
la

ce
, t

h
is

 

si
tu

at
io

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
a 

n
ig

h
tm

ar
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
at

 h
ea

vy
 t

ra
ff

ic
 v

o
lu

m
e.

 T
h

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 w

o
u

ld
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

le
ss

 t
im

e 

to
 in

st
al

l t
h

u
s 

a 
m

u
ch

 le
ss

 im
p

ac
t 

o
n

 t
h

e 
lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

. L
es

s 
p

ri
va

te
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 la

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
ac

q
u

ir
ed

 f
o

r 
tu

rn
in

g 
la

n
es

. U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 h

av
e 

so
m

e 
re

ga
rd

 f
o

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
l p

eo
p

le
 in

 t
h

is
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
an

d
 d

o
n

t 
h

av
e 

so
m

eo
n

e 
th

at
 li

ve
s 

ju
st

 d
o

w
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

tr
ac

ks
 t

o
 g

o
 t

o
 W

ax
h

aw
, a

n
d

 t
h

en
 

co
m

e 
b

ac
k 

to
 m

in
er

al
 s

p
ri

n
gs

 t
o

 g
o

 t
o

 c
h

u
rc

h
 o

r 
ge

t 
ga

s 
at

 t
h

e 
co

rn
er

. T
h

an
k 

yo
u

!!

U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
, t

h
e 

b
u

ild
in

g 
o

f 

su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
s/

To
w

n
h

o
m

e/
A

p
ar

tm
en

ts
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

h
av

e 

ru
in

ed
 W

ax
h

aw
 d

o
 n

o
t 

al
lo

w
 t

h
is

 t
o

 h
ap

p
en

 t
o

 M
in

er
al

 

Sp
ri

n
gs

 a
n

d
 H

o
u

st
o

n
! 

R
em

em
b

er
 t

h
e 

w
h

o
le

 a
p

p
ea

l t
o

 o
u

r 

ar
ea

 w
as

 t
h

e 
co

u
n

tr
ys

id
e 

cl
o

se
 t

o
 m

u
lt

ip
le

 la
rg

er
 t

o
w

n
s,

 n
o

t 

tu
rn

in
g 

W
ax

h
aw

 in
to

 N
O

D
A

. A
t 

so
m

e 
p

o
in

t 
h

ea
r 

th
e 

o
p

in
io

n
s 

o
f 

fo
lk

s 
th

at
 a

re
 t

ru
e 

n
at

iv
es

 a
n

d
 w

h
o

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 a
d

ve
rs

e
ly

 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

gr
o

w
th

. T
h

an
k 

yo
u

!

3
/1

3/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

4
0_

to
_4

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1

3
/1

3/
20

2
1

W
ax

h
aw

m
o

re
_

th
an

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
le

ss
_

th
an

_2
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

I f
ee

l a
s 

if
 t

h
is

 o
p

ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
a 

b
et

te
r 

fi
t 

fo
r 

sc
h

o
o

l b
u

s 
d

ri
ve

rs
 w

h
o

 t
ak

e 
a 

ri
gh

t 
tu

rn
 o

n
to

 p
o

tt
er

. I
 

fe
e

l a
s 

if
 r

o
u

n
d

-a
-b

o
u

ts
 a

re
 s

af
er

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 t

h
an

 li
gh

ts
. 

3
/1

4/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
5_

to
_1

0_
ye

ar
s

5
0_

to
_5

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
I t

h
in

k 
th

is
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
b

es
t 

ca
u

se
 I 

h
at

e 
ro

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
 

I r
ea

lly
 d

o
n

’t
 t

h
in

k 
an

yt
h

in
g 

n
ee

d
s 

to
 b

e 
d

o
n

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 

in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 I 

d
o

n
’t

 t
h

in
k 

it
’s

 t
h

at
 b

u
sy

 

3
/1

4/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

4
0_

to
_4

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1



U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

ri
ti

c
a
l 

In
te

rs
e
c
ti

o
n

 A
n

a
ly

si
s 

P
h

a
se

 I
I 

P
u

b
li

c
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

, 
M

a
rc

h
 8

 -
 A

p
ri

l 
2

, 
2

0
2

1

N
C

 7
5

 a
n

d
 P

o
tt

e
r 

R
d

, 
M

in
e
ra

l 
S

p
ri

n
g

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

D
a
te

W
h

e
re

 d
o

 y
o

u
 

li
v

e
?

H
o

w
 l

o
n

g
 h

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 l
iv

e
d

 

in
 U

n
io

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

?

P
le

a
se

 s
e

le
c
t 

y
o

u
r

 a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
.

P
le

a
se

 s
e

le
c
t 

y
o

u
r 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

.
P

le
a
se

 e
x

p
la

in
 w

h
y
 y

o
u

 p
re

fe
r 

th
is

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

.
P

le
a
se

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
y
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts

 o
r 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s 

a
t 

th
is

 i
n

te
rs

e
c
ti

o
n

.

3
/1

5/
20

2
1

M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

6
0

+
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
It

 a
p

p
ea

rs
 t

o
 m

e 
th

at
 t

h
e 

R
aB

 w
o

u
ld

 c
re

at
e 

m
o

re
 c

h
al

le
n

ge
s 

fo
r 

p
ed

es
tr

ia
n

s 
an

d
 c

yc
lin

g 
w

h
ile

 t
ry

in
g 

to
 c

ro
ss

 in
 e

it
h

er
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
s 

d
u

ri
n

g 
h

ea
vy

 t
ra

ff
ic

, m
o

st
 R

aB
 h

av
e 

co
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s 

tr
af

fi
c 

fl
o

w
 a

n
d

 le
ss

 li
ke

ly
 

to
 y

ie
ld

 t
o

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n

s 
ca

u
si

n
g 

a 
sa

fe
ty

 is
su

e.
2

. W
h

ile
 t

h
e 

en
g 

sp
ec

ts
 f

o
r 

R
aB

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e 
ad

eq
u

at
e,

 

m
o

st
 o

f 
th

em
 d

o
 n

o
t 

o
ff

er
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
ro

o
m

 f
o

r 
la

rg
er

 t
ru

ck
s/

tr
ai

le
rs

 a
n

d
 H

W
Y

 7
5 

ge
ts

 a
 lo

t 
o

f 

tr
ai

le
rs

..
.t

o
o

 c
u

m
b

er
so

m
e 

an
d

 s
af

et
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

an
 is

su
e.

 3
.S

m
al

l t
o

w
n

 e
ff

ec
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

lo
st

, w
h

er
ei

n
, a

 

tr
af

fi
c 

lig
h

t 
b

ri
n

gs
 t

ra
ff

ic
 in

to
 s

o
m

e 
fo

rm
 o

f 
co

n
tr

o
l..

.a
 s

to
p

 a
n

d
 g

o
 e

ff
ec

t.
 3

. T
h

e 
R

aB
 w

ill
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

a 

m
aj

o
r 

la
n

d
sc

ap
e 

af
fe

ct
 o

f 
th

e 
ar

ea
, m

o
re

 c
o

st
ly

 a
n

d
 le

ss
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

. 4
. M

an
y 

d
ri

ve
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t 
al

w
ay

s 

fo
llo

w
 t

h
e 

fl
o

w
 o

f 
th

e 
R

aB
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 c
au

si
n

g 
ac

ci
d

en
ts

/n
ea

r 
m

is
se

s 
(s

af
et

y)
 f

o
r 

d
ri

ve
rs

. 5
. A

ll 
in

 a
ll,

 

fo
r 

th
e 

lo
n

g 
te

rm
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
th

, a
 t

ra
ff

ic
 li

gh
t 

w
ill

 b
et

te
r 

se
rv

e 
u

s 
in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a 

ra
th

er
 t

h
an

 t
h

e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

o
f 

a 
R

aB
.

A
ll 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

el
l s

ta
te

d
 a

b
o

ve
.

3
/1

5/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
le

ss
_

th
an

_5
_y

ea
rs

4
0_

to
_4

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2
A

s 
gr

o
w

th
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
es

 in
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
ty

 t
h

e 
ro

ad
s 

in
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
ty

 a
re

 b
ec

o
m

in
g 

b
u

si
er

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

 h
ea

vi
ly

 

tr
av

el
ed

. I
 b

el
ie

ve
 t

h
is

 is
 t

h
e 

b
es

t 
lo

n
g 

te
rm

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

.

3
/1

5/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
5_

to
_1

0_
ye

ar
s

le
ss

_
th

an
_2

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
A

s 
m

u
ch

 a
s 

I l
ik

e 
ro

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
, i

 t
h

in
k 

tu
rn

 li
n

es
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 b
es

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s.

 I 
al

so
 t

h
in

k 
th

e 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

w
o

u
ld

 o
ve

r 
co

m
p

lic
at

e 
th

e 
fe

e
lin

g 
o

f 
th

e 
to

w
n

.

3
/1

5/
20

2
1

U
n

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty

11
_t

o
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

6
0

+
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2
M

o
re

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

n
tr

o
l n

ea
r 

th
e 

in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 w
h

en
 t

h
e 

tr
af

fi
c 

is
 lo

w
, w

o
u

ld
 s

ti
ll 

al
lo

w
 m

o
ve

m
en

t 

w
h

er
e 

yo
u

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 g

o
. I

 li
ke

 t
h

e 
lim

it
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 t

h
e 

ga
s 

st
at

io
n

 a
s 

I h
av

e 
h

ad
 n

u
m

er
o

u
s 

p
eo

p
le

 

p
u

lli
n

g 
o

u
t 

in
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
m

e 
fr

o
m

 t
h

at
 lo

ca
ti

o
n

.

I t
ra

ve
l t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h

is
 in

te
rs

e
ct

io
n

 s
e

ve
ra

l t
im

es
 e

ac
h

 w
ee

k.

3
/1

6/
20

2
1

In
d

ia
n

 T
ra

il
11

_t
o

_2
0_

ye
ar

s
4

0_
to

_4
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

W
e

 p
re

fe
r 

ke
e

p
in

g 
th

e 
tr

af
fi

c 
lig

h
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 m
o

re
 m

an
ag

ea
b

le
 t

o
 t

ra
ff

ic
. R

u
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
le

ad
s 

to
 a

 

p
re

fe
rr

ed
 t

ra
ff

ic
 p

at
te

rn
.

It
 is

 a
ls

o
 a

 lo
w

er
 c

o
st

 o
p

ti
o

n
.

3
/1

6/
20

2
1

U
n

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

u
n

ty

11
_t

o
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

6
0

+
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2
N

ic
e 

d
es

ig
n

 f
o

r 
th

is
 r

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t!

 It
 w

ill
 s

o
 g

re
at

ly
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

ra
ff

ic
 m

o
ve

m
en

t 
th

ro
u

gh
 M

in
er

al
 S

p
ri

n
gs

. 

W
e

 f
re

q
u

en
tl

y 
p

as
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 M
in

er
al

 S
p

ri
n

gs
 o

n
 P

o
tt

er
 R

d
. T

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

tr
af

fi
c 

lig
h

t 
si

m
p

ly
 s

to
p

s 

tr
af

fi
c 

ev
en

 w
h

en
 t

h
er

e 
is

 n
o

 c
ro

ss
 t

ra
ff

ic
. A

d
d

in
g 

tu
rn

 la
n

es
 w

ill
 o

n
ly

 IN
C

R
EA

SE
 t

h
e 

ti
m

e 
it

 t
ak

es
 t

h
e 

lig
h

t 
to

 c
yc

le
 t

h
ro

u
gh

. S
to

p
lig

h
ts

 a
re

 u
gl

y 
an

d
 a

 t
im

e 
an

d
 g

as
 w

as
te

r,
 a

n
d

 t
h

ey
 b

ac
k 

u
p

 w
ai

ti
n

g 
tr

af
fi

c 

su
ch

 t
h

at
 t

h
ey

 b
lo

ck
 e

xi
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l e
st

ab
lis

h
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 r

o
ad

s.
 

Th
e 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

el
eg

an
tl

y 
so

lv
es

 t
h

es
e 

p
ro

b
le

m
s.

 It
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 t
ra

ff
ic

 t
o

 m
o

ve
 s

m
o

o
th

ly
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 

im
p

ro
ve

s 
th

e 
o

ve
ra

ll 
lo

o
k 

o
f 

th
e 

in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
.  

Th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

sm
al

l l
ea

rn
in

g 
cu

rv
e 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
u

se
rs

, a
s 

m
en

ti
o

n
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

d
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
, b

u
t 

th
es

e 
ar

e 
n

o
t 

to
o

 h
ar

d
 t

o
 

fi
gu

re
 o

u
t.

 P
ro

p
er

 s
ig

n
ag

e 
w

ill
 h

el
p

. E
sp

ec
ia

lly
:

* 
so

u
th

 b
o

u
n

d
 P

o
tt

er
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
m

in
g 

o
u

t 
o

f 
O

ld
 W

ax
h

aw
-

M
o

n
ro

e 
H

w
y/

D
o

st
er

 R
d

. 

* 
n

o
rt

h
 b

o
u

n
d

 P
o

tt
er

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

m
in

g 
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ga
s 

st
at

io
n

.

* 
ea

st
 b

o
u

n
d

 O
ld

 W
ax

h
aw

-M
o

n
ro

e/
D

o
st

er
 R

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
m

in
g 

o
u

t 
o

f 
th

e 
ga

s 
st

at
io

n
. 

B
u

t 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

ec
o

m
e 

2n
d

 n
at

u
re

 s
o

o
n

 e
n

o
u

gh
. 

3
/1

7/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

3
0_

to
_3

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2
ro

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
 a

re
 g

re
at

re
d

u
ce

s 
ac

ci
d

en
ts

3
/1

7/
20

2
1

W
e

d
d

in
gt

o
n

le
ss

_
th

an
_5

_y
ea

rs
6

0
+

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

I r
id

e 
m

y 
b

ic
yc

le
 h

er
e 

fr
eq

u
en

tl
y.

 In
 m

y 
o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

er
e 

is
 t

o
o

 m
u

ch
 t

ra
ff

ic
 f

o
r 

a 
ro

u
n

d
ab

o
u

t.
 

3
/1

7/
20

2
1

W
e

sl
ey

 C
h

ap
el

11
_t

o
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

5
0_

to
_5

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
In

 m
y 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 p
eo

p
le

 d
o

n
’t

 k
n

o
w

 h
o

w
 t

o
 n

av
ig

at
e 

w
h

en
 t

h
er

e’
s 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 o
n

e 
la

n
e 

o
r 

sp
ec

if
ic

 

tu
rn

 la
n

es
. P

eo
p

le
 e

n
d

 u
p

 c
h

an
gi

n
g 

la
n

es
 la

te
 o

r 
d

o
n

’t
 r

ea
liz

e 
th

er
e 

co
u

ld
 b

e 
tw

o
 la

n
es

 g
o

in
g 

ri
gh

t 
fo

r 

ex
am

p
le

.  

Li
ke

 o
th

er
 in

te
rs

e
ct

io
n

s,
 w

h
en

 t
h

er
e’

s 
lo

w
 t

ra
ff

ic
 v

o
lu

m
e 

it
’s

 

o
k 

b
u

t 
it

’s
 a

 p
ai

n
 w

h
en

 t
h

er
e’

s 
tr

af
fi

c.
  

3
/1

7/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

5
0_

to
_5

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1
i h

at
e 

ro
u

n
d

 a
 b

o
u

ts
. 

3
/1

7/
20

2
1

M
o

n
ro

e
m

o
re

_
th

an
_2

0_
ye

ar
s

5
0_

to
_5

9
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

1

3
/1

7/
20

2
1

W
e

sl
ey

 C
h

ap
el

5_
to

_1
0_

ye
ar

s
5

0_
to

_5
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1

A
 t

u
rn

in
g 

la
n

e 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
gi

ve
n

 t
h

e 
tr

af
fi

c.
Yo

u
 r

ea
lly

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 d

o
 a

 r
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

t 
at

 N
C

8
4 

an
d

 P
o

tt
er

 R
d

 

w
it

h
 a

 le
ft

 t
u

rn
in

g 
la

n
e 

o
n

to
 P

o
tt

er
 R

d
. j

u
st

 n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

th
is

 

in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 (w

h
er

e 
Po

tt
er

 R
d

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

es
).

   
W

it
h

 t
h

e 

el
em

en
ta

ry
 s

ch
o

o
l r

ig
h

t 
o

n
 t

h
e 

co
rn

er
, b

u
se

s 
an

d
 c

o
m

m
u

ti
n

g 

tr
af

fi
c 

b
ac

ks
 u

p
 a

 m
ile

 d
o

w
n

 P
o

tt
er

 R
d

 a
lm

o
st

 t
o

 o
u

r 

su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 e

n
tr

an
ce

 (
Po

tt
er

s 
Tr

ac
e)

.  
  T

h
is

 is
 a

 m
u

ch
 b

u
si

er
 

in
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
 t

h
an

 N
C

 7
5 

at
 P

o
tt

er
 R

d
.

3
/1

7/
20

2
1

W
ax

h
aw

5_
to

_1
0_

ye
ar

s
4

0_
to

_4
9

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2

W
h

ile
 I 

d
o

 u
n

d
er

st
an

d
 t

h
e 

co
st

 is
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
tl

y 
h

ig
h

er
 I 

fe
e

l t
h

at
 t

h
e 

sa
vi

n
gs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

cr
as

h
es

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 in
 t

h
e 

lo
ss

 o
f 

lif
e 

fo
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
al

ly
 d

ea
d

ly
 c

ar
 c

ra
sh

es
 is

 w
o

rt
h

 t
h

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d

 

co
st

.



Activity Cost

Preliminary Engineering/Design (25% of Construction Cost) 497,000.00$           

Parcel # GIS Land Value
Total Parcel 

Area (Acres)
Cost/Acre

ROW Impact 

(Acres)

ROW Impact 

Value

2.0 * ROW Impact 

Value + $5,000 

Appraisal

PE Contingency (40%) 199,000.00$           1-1 95,200.00$        1.360 70,000.00$     0.0148 1,036.00$       10,000.00$              

Total PE Phase 700,000.00$           1-2 120,300.00$      1.718 70,023.28$     0.0575 4,026.34$       10,000.00$              

1-3 216,400.00$      1.731 125,014.44$   0.0935 11,688.85$     28,377.70$              

Gas Relocation @ $125/LF (1030 LF) 128,750.00$           1-4 5,200.00$           0.069 75,362.32$     0.008 602.90$           10,000.00$              

Power Relocation 520,000.00$           1-5 11,800.00$        0.270 43,703.70$     0.0173 756.07$           10,000.00$              

Right-of-Way Cost 395,000.00$           1-6 1,600.00$           0.242 6,611.57$       0.0393 259.83$           10,000.00$              

ROW & Utilities Contingency (40%) 418,000.00$           1-7 142,000.00$      1.420 100,000.00$   0.062 6,200.00$       10,000.00$              

Total ROW Phase 1,470,000.00$       * 1-8 53,400.00$        0.140 381,428.57$   0.071 27,081.43$     59,162.86$              

1-9 52,500.00$        0.75 70,000.00$     

260' Right Turn Lane @ $475/LF 123,500.00$           1-10 112,100.00$      17.320 6,472.29$       0.1112 719.72$           10,000.00$              

300' Left Turn Lane @ $475/LF 142,500.00$           1-11 71,400.00$        1.020 70,000.00$     0.1063 7,441.00$       10,000.00$              

400' Left Turn Lane @ $475/LF 190,000.00$           1-12 118,300.00$      0.910 130,000.00$   0.2481 32,253.00$     69,506.00$              

500' Left Turn Lane @ $475/LF 237,500.00$           1-13 94,000.00$        8.763 10,726.92$     0.1689 1,811.78$       10,000.00$              

100' Left Turn Lane @ $475/LF 47,500.00$             1-14 21,500.00$        1.720 12,500.00$     0.0003 3.75$               10,000.00$              

100' Right Turn Lane @ $475/LF 47,500.00$             1-15 13,900.00$        0.579 24,006.91$     

2090 SY New sidewalk @ $50/SY 104,500.00$           1-16 14,000.00$        0.591 23,688.66$     0.017 402.71$           10,000.00$              

260 SY Concrete Island @ $65/SY 16,900.00$             1-17 13,100.00$        0.463 28,293.74$     0.0174 492.31$           10,000.00$              

Upgrade Traffic Signal 100,000.00$           1-18 303,800.00$      2.025 150,024.69$   0.1404 21,063.47$     47,126.93$              

2430' Curb and Gutter @ $35/LF 85,050.00$             1-19 32,200.00$        0.460 70,000.00$     0.0395 2,765.00$       10,000.00$              

0.45 Mi. Closed Drainage System @ $750,000/mile 337,500.00$           1-20 32,100.00$        0.459 69,934.64$     0.0401 2,804.38$       10,000.00$              

Railroad Signal 450,000.00$           1-21 33,600.00$        0.480 70,000.00$     0.0371 2,597.00$       10,000.00$              

Water Relocation @ $100/LF (530LF) 53,000.00$             1-22 744,300.00$      26.714 27,861.80$     0.03 835.85$           10,000.00$              

Sewer Relocation @ $120/LF (430 LF) 51,600.00$             1-23 13,200.00$        0.480 27,500.00$     0.0098 269.50$           10,000.00$              

Construction Cost 1,988,000.00$        1-24 60,000.00$        1.000 60,000.00$     

Construction Inspection (20% of Construction Cost) 398,000.00$           1-25 48,000.00$        1.000 48,000.00$     0.0043 206.40$           10,000.00$              

Construction + CEI Contingency (40%) 955,000.00$           1-26 151,300.00$      2.521 60,015.87$     0.0045 270.07$           10,000.00$              

Total Construction Phase 3,350,000.00$       Total 1.3383 125,587.36$   394,173.49$            

Project Total 5,520,000.00$       

Notes

Turn Lane Cost (per LF) based on 2/1/21 Cost Per Mile spreadsheet provided by NCDOT. Cost to add turn lane to existing four lane divided roadway, assume same cost for two lane non-divided roadway.

Total values rounded using 4 significant figures.

A minimum of $10,000 used per impacted parcel.

Costs were calculated based on FY 2020 dollars.

* - Full Parcel Take

1) NC 75 and Potter Rd - Alternative 1 - Turn Lane Improvements

Right-of-Way Cost



Acitvity Cost

Preliminary Engineering/Design (25% of Construction Cost) 1,014,000.00$                
Parcel # GIS Land Value

Total Parcel 

Area (Acres)
Cost/Acre ROW Impact (Acres) ROW Impact Value

2.0 * ROW Impact 

Value + $5,000 

Appraisal

PE Contingency (40%) 406,000.00$                    2-1 95,200.00$        1.360 70,000.00$    0.0148 1,036.00$                  10,000.00$             

Total PE Phase 1,420,000.00$                2-2 120,300.00$      1.718 70,023.28$    0.0300 2,100.70$                  10,000.00$             

2-3 216,400.00$      1.731 125,014.44$  0.0889 11,113.78$                27,227.57$             

Gas Relocation @ $125/LF (1060 LF) 132,500.00$                    2-4 5,200.00$          0.069 75,362.32$    0.0032 241.16$                      10,000.00$             

Power Relocation 465,000.00$                    2-5 11,800.00$        0.270 43,703.70$    

Right-of-Way Cost 496,000.00$                    2-6 1,600.00$          0.242 6,611.57$       0.0150 99.17$                        10,000.00$             

ROW & Utilities Contingency (40%) 438,000.00$                    * 2-7 188,700.00$      1.420 132,887.32$  0.1029 13,674.11$                32,348.21$             

Total ROW Phase 1,540,000.00$                * 2-8 53,400.00$        0.140 381,428.57$  0.0901 34,366.71$                73,733.43$             

2-9 52,500.00$        0.75 70,000.00$    0.0007 49.00$                        10,000.00$             

375' Left Turn Lane @ $475/LF 178,125.00$                    2-10 112,100.00$      17.320 6,472.29$       0.0008 5.18$                          10,000.00$             

225' Right Turn Lane @ $475/LF 106,875.00$                    2-11 71,400.00$        1.020 70,000.00$    0.1177 8,239.00$                  10,000.00$             

75' Left Turn Lane @ $475/LF 35,625.00$                      2-12 118,300.00$      0.910 130,000.00$  0.2593 33,709.00$                72,418.00$             

50' Right Turn Lane @ $475/LF 23,750.00$                      2-13 94,000.00$        8.763 10,726.92$    0.2939 3,152.64$                  10,000.00$             

325' Right Turn Lane @ $475/LF 154,375.00$                    2-14 21,500.00$        1.720 12,500.00$    0.0383 478.75$                      10,000.00$             

75' Right Turn Lane @ $475/LF 35,625.00$                      2-15 13,900.00$        0.579 24,006.91$    0.0197 472.94$                      10,000.00$             

100' Left Turn Lane @ $475/LF 47,500.00$                      2-16 14,000.00$        0.591 23,688.66$    0.0326 772.25$                      10,000.00$             

2260 SY New sidewalk @ $50/SY 113,000.00$                    2-17 13,100.00$        0.463 28,293.74$    0.0239 676.22$                      10,000.00$             

365' New Location Roadway @ $795.45/LF 290,339.25$                    2-18 303,800.00$      2.025 150,024.69$  0.3496 52,448.63$                109,897.26$           

Roundabout Cost @ 150' Diameter w/ 2 Lanes 2,025,000.00$                2-19 32,200.00$        0.460 70,000.00$    0.0598 4,186.00$                  10,000.00$             

4350' Curb and Gutter @ $35/LF 152,250.00$                    2-20 32,100.00$        0.459 69,934.64$    0.0554 3,874.38$                  10,000.00$             

0.46 Mi. Closed Drainage System @ $750,000/mile 345,000.00$                    2-21 33,600.00$        0.480 70,000.00$    0.0451 3,157.00$                  10,000.00$             

Railroad Signal 450,000.00$                    2-22 744,300.00$      26.714 27,861.80$    0.0352 980.74$                      10,000.00$             

Water Relocation @ $100/LF (660 LF) 66,000.00$                      2-23 13,200.00$        0.480 27,500.00$    0.027 742.50$                      10,000.00$             

Sewer Relocation @ $120/LF (270 LF) 32,400.00$                      2-24 60,000.00$        1.000 60,000.00$    0.0027 162.00$                      10,000.00$             

Construction Cost 4,056,000.00$                2-25 48,000.00$        1.000 48,000.00$    

Construction Inspection (20% of Construction Cost) 812,000.00$                    2-26 151,300.00$      2.521 60,015.87$    

Construction + CEI Contingency (40%) 1,948,000.00$                Total 1.7066 175,737.86$              495,624.47$           

Total Construction Phase 6,820,000.00$                

Project Total 9,780,000.00$                

Notes

Turn Lane Cost (per LF) based on 2/1/21 Cost Per Mile spreadsheet provided by NCDOT. Cost to add turn lane to existing four lane divided roadway, assume same cost for two lane non-divided roadway.

Roundabout Cost -  Interpolated based on 2/1/21 Roundabout Cost Estimate spreadsheet provided by NCDOT.

Total values rounded using 4 significant figures.

A minimum of $10,000 used per impacted parcel.

Cost for new location roadway based on 2/1/21 Cost Per Mile spreadsheet provided by NCDOT. Cost for new location roadway assumed 2-lane shoulder section with 2' paved shoulder.

Costs were calculated based on FY 2020 dollars.

* - Full Parcel Take

2) NC 75 and Potter Rd - Alternative 2 - Roundabout

Right-of-Way Cost



’ – ’ –

“middle housing” ty “Middle ”

“ ” if this bill becomes law.

“ ” (empha “a wastewater

” “ ”

“accessory dwe ” on any lot i

“ ”
“ ”



“ ”



one of every local governing board’s primary purposes is to represent the desires
of its citizens and to serve as a voice for the greater good of the community; and

local regulation of land use and development is of paramount importance to
protecting the well-being and quality of life for Mineral Springs residents; and

House Bill 401 and Senate Bill 349 explicitly deny local governments the ability
to effectively regulate land use and development in their jurisdictions; and

North Carolina law, especially newly-enacted Chapter 160D, already imposes
strict guidelines and limits on how local governments may regulate land use and development; and

Mineral Springs has invested hundreds of hours and tens of thousands of tax
dollars into adopting a development ordinance that reflects the input of citizens, planning
professionals, and other stakeholders while diligently following all statutory requirements; and

the Mineral Springs development ordinance already allows so-called “middle
housing” types and accessory dwellings in multiple residential zoning districts; and

forcing higher-density housing situations into every residential zoning district in
every local jurisdiction as a matter of state law represents an inappropriate “one size fits all” mandate
that bypasses the sound judgment and careful study undertaken by those local jurisdictions to be
responsive to the individual needs of their residents; and

local governments, closely guided as they are by their residents, are in the best
position to determine which housing types are most suited to various locations throughout their
jurisdictions.

that the Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs
hereby opposes H401/S349 in its current form and requests that the North Carolina General Assembly
drop this bill from consideration.

this 13th day of May, 2021.

________________________________
Frederick Becker III, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC



 

For a complete list of sponsors, refer to the North Carolina General Assembly web site.

*H401-v-1* 























l

l





one of every local government’s primary purposes is to protect the health, safety,
and well-being of its citizens while serving as a voice for the greater good of the community; and

trees, especially mature specimens that make up a region’s existing canopy, are
a large contributor to that health, safety, and well-being as they generate atmospheric oxygen,
sequester carbon, and reduce stormwater runoff and flooding; and

tree preservation and retention requirements as part of a development plan are
permissible under general authority granted by existing statutes; and

the right of private landowners to remove trees on their property is already
secured and protected by statute outside of the development approval process; and

allowing developers to receive credit toward landscaping and buffer requirements
for protecting existing trees during the development approval process facilitates efficient, cost-
effective, and desirable outcomes; and

arbitrarily eliminating the ability of local governments to regulate tree removal
during the development process wreaks havoc with and creates conflict with already-approved
landscaping plans and tree-preservation agreements; and

demanding that local governments seek individual state authorization through
local acts for tree preservation and protection introduces further inconsistency and confusion into the
process of development approval; and

H496 creates multiple conflicts with existing law including laws governing tree
preservation in riparian buffers and laws delaying development approval following clear cutting, and
hampers the application of sound urban forestry principles to tree management in developing areas.

that the Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs
hereby opposes H496 and requests that the North Carolina General Assembly drop this bill from
consideration.

this 13th day of May, 2021.

________________________________
Frederick Becker III, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC



 

For a complete list of sponsors, refer to the North Carolina General Assembly web site.

*H496-v-1* 



 

 

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: May 6, 2021 
Re: Agenda Item # 8 – Benchmark Planning Information for Scope of Services Quote 
 
 
Ms. Erin Burris from Benchmark Planning has requested more information from the town on the 
services they want to have included in the Scope of Services quote for revising the Land Use Plan.  

Does the council want Benchmark Planning to do a new survey? 

How many workshops does the council feel will be appropriate? 

Does the council want a public drop-in public workshop?  If so, how many?   

      

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
 











the town’s day

(f) states that “[e]ach

”



fficer’s draft appropriations worksheet

Prior to the town council’

incorporates these estimates plus Council’s

the clerk’s office.

The “revenue neutral” property tax rate is

would be lower than the previous year’s



the “Office” appropriation in the budget

“ ” and $5, 00 for “utilities”, it

officer to make “ ” expenditures
of $3,000 and “utility” expenditures of







TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS PAGE 1: BUDGET JULY 1, 2021 - JUNE 30, 2022

Property Taxes 78,365$
Current Year 77,765$
Prior Years 600$

Interest 2,500$
Other Income 1,200$

Festival -$
Miscellaneous 1,200$

Sales Tax 271,925$
Alcoholic Beverage 13,145$
Electricity 208,000$
General Sales & Use 29,430$
Natural Gas Excise 950$
Telecommunications 2,400$
Video Programming 18,000$

Vehicle Taxes 6,725$
Zoning Fees 3,500$

Advertising 1,800$
Attorney 9,600$
Audit 4,730$
Charities & Agencies 10,545$
Community 26,000$

Beautification, Maintenance 6,300$
Newsletter 2,700$
Special events 10,000$

Festival 5,000$
AMG 4,000$
Misc 1,000$

Park & Greenway Maint 7,000$
Contingency 3,000$
Elections 3,300$
Employee Overhead (FICA, work comp, bonds) 35,000$
Fire Protection 12,000$
Intergovernmental 15,000$

Intersection Study 5,000$
Construction Match 10,000$



TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS PAGE 2: BUDGET JULY 1, 2021 - JUNE 30, 2022

Office 152,919$
Salary: Clerk 39,648$
Salary: Deputy Clerk/Assistant 12,300$
Salary: Finance Officer 36,624$
Salary: Mayor 4,800$
Salary: Council 10,800$
Dues 7,300$
Insurance 4,000$
Records Management 5,347$
Equipment & durable items 2,400$
Supplies 4,000$
Postage (General) 1,000$
Telephone, Internet 7,200$
Reserve/Misc 1,000$
Town Hall Maintenance 12,000$

Supplies 2,000$
Services 10,000$

Utilities 4,500$
Planning 49,272$

Zoning Ord. & Planning 5,000$
Zoning Administration 36,272$

Salary 34,272$
Contract 2,000$

Land Use Planning 5,000$
Reserve/Misc 3,000$

Street Lighting 1,200$
Tax Collection 1,600$

Salary -$
Contract (Union County) 1,600$
Postage -$
Billing -$

Training 3,000$
Boards 1,000$
Officials 1,000$
Staff (Clerk, TC, FO) 1,000$

Travel Expenses 4,200$

Capital Outlay 31,049$



Queen’s Cup Race Program

last year’s appro

bring more control and greater transparency to the town’s contribution to various local
profits. The amount is calculated as 3% of the previous year’s total budget: 0.03 x

over last year’s appropriation,

t the town elects to conduct one or more “festival like”



required contribution to the NC Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System

the clerk’s
officer’s base salary

’s

zoning administrator’s salary

same as last year’s

Focus of the town’s abandoned swimming

state’s new Chapter 160D legislation.



the same as last year’s

last year’s

year’



has increased substantially due to Union County’s property
Union County’s estimate for real property is $361,387,580 which we are

through the county’s proc
based on last year’s

year’s rate but



the town’s largest revenue source, the amount has

14 as the “baseline year” for this distribution. Sales tax on additional
electricity consumption above this “baseline” amount is calculated by the same formula

distribution based on the town’s percentage of the total property tax levy in the county.

– –

%, based on Union County’s estimate

the system works the tax levy doesn’t exist until it is collected. Even so,
don’t get renewed, and some collections end up being refunded

Note that this revenue stream is down $1,210 from last year’s vehicle tax levy even
’













TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS PAGE 1: BUDGET JULY 1, 2020 - JUNE 30, 2021

Property Taxes 67,810$
Current Year 67,210$
Prior Years 600$

Interest 5,825$
Other Income 3,000$

Festival 1,800$
Miscellaneous 1,200$

Sales Tax 264,410$
Alcoholic Beverage 13,015$
Electricity 207,000$
General Sales & Use 21,400$
Natural Gas Excise 1,095$
Telecommunications 3,200$
Video Programming 18,700$

Vehicle Taxes 7,935$
Zoning Fees 2,500$

Advertising 1,800$
Attorney 9,600$
Audit 4,730$
Charities & Agencies 10,825$
Community 30,800$

Beautification, Maintenance 6,300$
Newsletter 2,500$
Special events 15,000$

Festival 10,000$
AMG 4,000$
Misc 1,000$

Park & Greenway Maint 7,000$
Contingency 3,000$
Elections -$
Employee Overhead (FICA, work comp, bonds) 32,500$
Fire Protection 12,000$
Intergovernmental 15,000$

Intersection Study 5,000$
Construction Match 10,000$



TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS PAGE 2: BUDGET JULY 1, 2020 - JUNE 30, 2021

Office 149,844$
Salary: Clerk 38,496$
Salary: Deputy Clerk/Assistant 11,500$
Salary: Finance Officer 35,556$
Salary: Mayor 4,800$
Salary: Council 10,800$
Dues 7,000$
Insurance 4,000$
Records Management 5,092$
Equipment & durable items 2,400$
Supplies 4,000$
Postage (General) 1,000$
Telephone, Internet 7,200$
Reserve/Misc 1,000$
Town Hall Maintenance 12,000$

Supplies 2,000$
Services 10,000$

Utilities 5,000$
Planning 48,276$

Zoning Ord. & Planning 5,000$
Zoning Administration 35,276$

Salary 33,276$
Contract 2,000$

Land Use Planning 5,000$
Reserve/Misc 3,000$

Street Lighting 1,600$
Tax Collection 1,900$

Salary 300$
Contract (Union County) 1,600$
Postage -$
Billing -$

Training 3,000$
Boards 1,000$
Officials 1,000$
Staff (Clerk, TC, FO) 1,000$

Travel Expenses 4,200$

Capital Outlay 22,405$



Interest 5,825$
Property Taxes 67,810$
Sales Tax 264,410$
Vehicle Taxes 7,935$
Zoning Fees 2,500$
Other 3,000$

Advertising 1,800$
Attorney 9,600$
Audit 4,730$
Charities 10,825$
Community Projects 30,800$

Beaut., Maint. 6,300$ 4,800$
Special Events 15,000$ 4,500$
Newsletter 2,500$ 1,400$
Park & Greenway 7,000$ 4,544$

Contingency 3,000$
Elections -$
Employee overhead 32,500$
Fire Department grant 12,000$
Intergovernmental 15,000$
Office 149,844$

Sal.: Clerk 38,496$ 38,496$
Sal: Deputy 11,500$ 11,078$
Sal.: Fin. Officer 35,556$ 35,556$
Sal: Mayor 4,800$ 4,800$
Sal: Council 10,800$ 10,800$
Dues 7,000$ 7,081$
Insurance 4,000$ 3,268$
Records Management 5,092$ 5,092$
Equip. & dur. 2,400$ 1,812$
Supplies 4,000$ 2,354$
Postage 1,000$ 600$
Tel., Internet 7,200$ 6,872$
Reserve 1,000$ 821$
Town Hall Maint 12,000$ 9,335$

Supplies 2,000$ 675$
Services 10,000$ 8,660$

Utilities 5,000$ 6,024$
Planning 48,276$

Zoning Ord. 5,000$ 3,480$
Zoning Admin 35,276$ 34,571$

Salary 33,276$ 33,276$
Contract 2,000$ 1,295$

Land Use Plan 5,000$ 2,000$
Reserve/Misc 3,000$ 1,500$

Street Lighting 1,600$
Tax Collection 1,900$

Salary 300$ 300$
Contract (Union County) 1,600$ 1,403$
Postage -$ -$
Billing -$ -$

Training 3,000$
Officials 1,000$ -$
Planning Org. 1,000$ -$
Staff 1,000$ 876$

Travel Expenses 4,200$

Capital Outlay 22,405$ (6,804)$


	051321_tca
	051321 MEMO to tc proposed text amendments
	tc_agenda_items_2_and_3_051321
	051321 MEMO to tc proposed text amendments
	G.S. Chapter 160D Checklist of Changes_Mineral Springs 5-13-21
	160D Proposed Amendments_Mineral Springs 5-13-21

	051321 Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness text amendment DRAFT
	040821_tcmd
	21_03_to_print
	Union_County_Tax_Report_21_03
	Tax_Report_21-03
	Unpaid Property Taxes - All

	Finance_Report_2103_MSPDF
	NC 75 at Potter Rd Agenda Item
	210513_Oppose_NCGA_Bills_MSPDF_Agenda_Item
	051321 MEMO to tc Benchmark
	2021-22_Budget_Complete_MSPDF_AGENDA_PAGE_NUMBERS

